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NRIEF
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NRIEF
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SENEREEABZERE

Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

Aged 49, graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1982 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration.
Since graduation, he worked in various international banks in the
commercial, corporate and investment banking areas. Mr. Tong is
a licensed representative for Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the Securities and Future Ordinance, an
associate director of Oriental Patron Asia Limited and the past
president of the Rotary Club of Tsim Sha Tsui. Mr. Tong is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Tong is brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Chun Keung,
the director of the Company and Dr. Wong Chun Loong, the Chief
Creative Officer of animation division and a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Tong joined the Group in August 2002.

Aged 42, graduated in the law department of Beijing University in
1990. Mr. Zheng has over 12 years experience in Beijing in the areas
of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis management
and financial advisory. Mr. Zheng is a Standing Director of China
Automobile Dealers Association. Mr. Zheng is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Zheng joined the Group in
October 2006.

Aged 50, has over 29 years of experience in newspaper and
magazine publications and printing. Mr. Wong has worked as the
general manager and/or the director of daily newspaper, colour
separation and printing companies and was responsible for
the colour separation, printing and distribution of comics, daily
newspaper and magazines. Mr. Wong is brother-in-law of Mr. Tong
Kai Lap, the Chairman of the Company and brother of Dr. Wong
Chun Loong, the Chief Creative Officer of animation division and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group
in August 2002.
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SENEREEABZERE

Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

Aged 40, graduated in the Information Technology Department of
Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 1990. He has over 12
years experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management
of luxury goods in Beijing. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in September
2008. Mr. Zhao is also directors of Beijing Bin Li Group Limited,
Beijing Ying Shang Tong Trading Development Limited, Beijing Fu Jie
Mei Watch Trading Company Limited and Beijing Ying Jie Jewelry
Trading Company Limited all of which are controlled by Mr. Qi Jian
Hong, the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Aged 50, is the Vice Chairman of National Resources Securities
Limited. Mr. Choy has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University. Mr.
Choy is an independent non-executive director of Chengdu Putian
Telecommunications Cable Company Limited, Zhaojin Mining
Industry Company Limited and China Mandarin Holdings Limited,
all are companies listed on the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Choy is also the Vice-chairman
of the Institute of Securities Dealers Limited, committee member
of Society of Registered Financial Planner Limited, fellow member
of Institute of Financial Accountants, Fellow Certified Financial
Strategist of Hong Kong Institute of Investors, fellow member of
the Institute of Compliance Officer, member of Shantou Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Committee, honorary president of
Shantou Overseas Friendship and committee member of Rotary Club
Kowloon West.
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SENEREEABZERE

Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

Aged 55, holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong for over 29
years’ experience. Mr. Lam is independent non-executive director of
Wing Lee Holdings Limited and Same Time Holdings Limited, both
are companies listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) and
a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Lam is currently a member of Election Committee,
member of Yuen Long District Council, member of Yuen Long
District Fight Crime Committee, a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New
Territories, member of Appeal Board Panel, Smoking (Public Health)
(Amendment) Ordinance, member of Buildings Ordinance Appeal
Tribunal Panel and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages.

Aged 55, is the Managing Director of Thomas Lee & Partners Limited
and an independent non-executive director and chairman of the
audit and remuneration committee of CIG Yangtze Ports PLC whose
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lee is also an independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee and member of remuneration
committee of Man Sang International Limited whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is a member
of the Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners, the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor’s and master’s degrees in laws from
the University of London and was called to the Bar of the Lincoln’s
Inn. He served as President of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
from 1999 to 2002, and is currently Deputy President of the Asia-
Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association and Vice President of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association.
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EENRAEEABZER

Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

Aged 42,
watch distributorship division of the Group. Mr. Qi has over 15 years

is the president of the car distributorship division and

experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management of
luxury goods in China. Mr. Qi joined the Group in June 2008. He is
directors of Beijing Bin Li Group Limited and Beijing Ying Shang Tong
Trading Development Limited. Mr. Qi is a Standing Director of China
Automobile Dealers Association. He is also the sole beneficial owner
of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Aged 59, alias Mr. Wong Yuk Long, the founder of Jade Dynasty
Holdings Limited. Dr. Wong has over 40 years of experience in local
comics industry, is considered as one of the most influential comics
artists, a pioneer in the comics industry in Hong Kong. Dr. Wong
is the Chairman of Hong Kong Comics and Animation Federation
Limited, Visiting Professor of Beijing Film Academy- Animation
Academy, Hononary Visiting Professor of Sichuan University and
Honourable Professor of Taiwan Ling Tung University. Dr. Wong was
also awarded “World Outstanding Chinese Award” confessed by the
World Outstanding Charity Foundation and obtained an Honorary
Doctoral Degree by the University of New Castle (USA). Dr. Wong
is the Chief Creative Officer of the animation division of the Group
responsible for the overall strategy in comic titles creation and
animation development. Dr. Wong is brother-in-law of Mr. Tong Kai
Lap, the Chairman of the Company and brother of Mr. Wong Chun
Keung, the director of the Company.

Aged 47, is the deputy general manager of the car distributorship
division of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 26 years of experience in
managing the automobile aftersales service businesses and sales
management particularly for Bentley since 2003. Mr. Leung joined
the Group in June 2008 and he is responsible for managing the sales
of Bentley and aftersales service.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

Aged 39, is the deputy general manager of the car distributorship
division of the Group. Mr. Ho has over 10 years of experience in
management sales of automobiles. Mr. Ho joined the Group in June
2008 and he is responsible for managing the sales of Lamborghini
and Rolls Royce.

Aged 46, has over 30 years of experience in production and creation
of comics in Hong Kong. Mr. Wan is the chief executive officer of
KINGcomics.com Limited, a subsidiary of the Company engaging
in e-commerce activities specialised in online comics reading and
selling of comics-related merchandises and is also in charge of
multi-media business development of the Group. Mr. Wan joined the
Group in August 2002.

Aged 44, is the head of the production team of the comics and
animation business of the Group. Mr. Kwong has over 20 years of
experience in comics production and joined the Group in August
2002. Mr. Kwong is responsible for strategic planning of comics
publication, marketing analysis, development of comics related
merchandises and overseeing the operation of the production team.

Aged 41, graduated from Shanghai College of Air Force and
Politics in 1990. Ms. Guo also received Master of Engineering
Management from the BeiHang University (formerly known as
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics). Ms. Guo has
over 10 years experience in media operation and management
which launched various media projects in Beijing, Shanghai and
Guangzhou respectively. Ms. Guo joined the Group in April 2006 and
is responsible for developing animations business in PRC including
audio products, TV broadcasting, peripheral products licensing and
relevant marketing-related public relations activities.

Aged 34, graduated from The City University of Hong Kong with
Bachelor of Art (Hons) in Accountancy in 1997 and has over 12
years of working experience in auditing and accounting in Hong
Kong and People’s Republic of China. Prior to joining the Company,
he has worked for an international audit firm for more than seven
years and a pharmaceutical group as financial controller for three
years. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant (UK). He joined the Group in January 2008.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 of
approximately HK$611.5 million represented a significant increase of
approximately 290% compared to approximately HK$156.7 million
recorded in the corresponding period of last year. The significant
increase in turnover was a result of the completion of acquisition of
automobile distributorships of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce
and watch distributorships of Richard Mille in June and July 2008,
respectively. However, in view of the currently deteriorating economic
conditions around the globe, impairments have been made on
certain assets of the Group which related to the Group’s comics
(i) goodwill; (ii) copyrights;
(iii) film rights; and (iv) work-in-progress. As a result of the aggregate

and multimedia businesses including:

impairment losses of approximately HK$209.0 million, a net loss of
HK$190.0 million was resulted for the year ended 31 March 2009, as
compared with a profit of approximately HK$6.6 million for the last
financial year.

At the year end date, the Group maintained a net cash position with
cash at banks and in hand of approximately HK$71.6 million (2008:
HK$27.2 million), short-term bank borrowings of approximately
HK$13.4 million (2008: HK$0.9 million) and other short-term
borrowings of HK$20.0 million (2008: Nil). The Group had sufficient
financial resources and will continue to finance its business
development by internal resources and short-term borrowings.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2009 (2008: Nil), which together with
the interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per share (2008: HKO0.2 cent
per share) make a total dividend of HK1.0 cent per share for the
year end of 31 March 2009 (2008: HKO0.2 cent per share). The total
dividend amounted to approximately HK$17.9 million (2008: HK$2.2
million) for the year ended 31 March 2009.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

On 26 June 2008, the Group has completed the acquisition of the
exclusive entitlements to all of the economic benefits derived from
the distributorships of Bentley cars, Lamborghini cars and Rolls-
Royce cars and rights to control, manage and operate Beijing Mei
He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited and Beijing De Te Motors
Trading Limited and 102 Bentley automobiles, 26 Lamborghini
automobiles and 31 Rolls-Royce automobiles were sold in Beijing
since then and up to 31 March 2009. From 1 January 2008 to
25 June 2008 inclusive, 48 Bentley automobiles, 17 Lamborghini
automobiles and 25 Rolls-Royce automobiles were sold in Beijing
and the profit derived from which were accounted to the Group.

On 9 July 2008, the Group has acquired the distributorship of
Richard Mille watches and on 8 August 2008, the Group has
acquired the Shanghai Richard Mille Shop. 40 pieces of watches
were sold since then and up to 31 March 2009.

During the year, the Group published and sold 10 local Chinese
comic books on a weekly or bi-weekly basis and approximately 23
Japanese comic books on a monthly basis. The Group also grants
comic books licensing to overseas publishers to translate comic
books into different languages.

Revenue generated from publications and distributions of comic
books decreased by 13.9% to approximately HK$94.5 million, this
segment’s results decreased and changed from profit to a loss of
approximately HK$120.5 million due to the sharp increase in the
printing and paper costs and impairment made on goodwill and
copyrights during the year.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

Animations subcontracting works of 140 episodes with around 3,100
minutes have been produced during the year.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group has 632 (2008: 663) employees.
Employees’ costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged to the
consolidated income statement amounted to approximately HK$70.1
million for the year (2008: HK$50.6 million). All permanent employees
were under the remuneration policy of fixed monthly salary with
discretionary bonus.

There has been no change to the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 7 October 2002. No new share options
were granted during the current year. No share option was exercised
during the year and there were no outstanding share options
granted to directors, employees, consultants, advisors, customers,
shareholders and business associates as at 31 March 2009 (2008:
Nil).

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2009 were approximately
HK$879.2 million (2008: HK$411.8 million) which were financed by
the shareholders’ fund and total liabilities of approximately HK$575.5
million (2008: HK$351.5 million) and HK$300.2 million (2008:
HK$52.9 million) respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing future
investment opportunities in suitable business ventures.

The Group had limited exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates and its borrowings, bank balances and cash were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

On 26 June 2008, 400,000,000 new ordinary shares together
with convertible notes of principal amount of HK$264 million were
issued as part of the consideration to a vendor for the acquisition of
subsidiaries. Among which, convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$66 million were converted into 300 million new ordinary
shares of HK$0.002 each at HK$0.22 per share.

The Group’s gearing ratio then computed as total borrowings over
shareholders’ fund was approximately 37.7% as at 31 March 2009
(2008: 0.3%).

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi and the cost of production and purchase are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore,
the Group is not exposed to any other material foreign currency
exchange risk.

As at 31 March 2009, certain assets of the Group with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$5.4 million (2008: HK$18.6 million),
represented by pledged deposits of HK$5.4 million (2008: HK$4.4
million, together with buildings and prepaid lease payments of
HK$14.2 million), were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

In response to the global economy experienced unprecedented
turbulence during the fourth quarter of 2008 and the beginning of
2009, the Group issued two profit warnings dated 12 November
2008 and 3 April 2009 during this full financial year. The latter one
was informing the investing public that our final results for the year
ended 31 March 2009 would experience a significant deterioration
as compared with the previous financial year and we expected
a net loss would be recorded. Additional to the impairments of
HK$101.5 million for the first half of this financial year, the Group
announced further impairments of amounted HK$107.5 million for
the second half of this financial year, making a total impairment
amount of HK$209.0 million. The Directors would like to emphasize
the impairments of this full financial year related to our comics
and multimedia businesses including goodwill, intangible assets
comprising comic books royalty, intellectual properties, animations
work-in-progress and film rights are non-cash in nature and do not
affect the Group’s cash flow condition. In particular, impairments
for an aggregate amount of approximately HK$6.7 million have
been made on [ #X 4 | (“Yamucha’s”) and [ & E | (“Xiangi Master”),
two animation series held by Nanjing Hongying. As a result of
the impairments made on these intellectual properties, we would
like to report the actual profit of Suzhou Hongyang (the operating
subsidiary of Super Win), Nanjing Hongying and Shanghai Sanding
(collectively known as the “Acquired Companies”) was unable to
meet the Guaranteed Profit of HK$8.5 million during the year ended
31 December 2008, as stated in the Circular of the Company dated
31 August 2007 issued in connection with the acquisition of interests
in the Acquired Companies which constituted a major transaction for
the Group. The Acquired Companies had an aggregate audited net
profit after tax of approximately HK$6.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2008. Due to the shortfall of the Actual Profit from the
Guaranteed Profit, the Vendors paid JD Multi-media approximately
HK$2.2 million in cash on 9 June 2009, which was within 14 days
after the copies of the audited financial statements of Acquired
Companies had been provided to JD Multi-media as required by the
SP Agreement. Therefore, the Group had decided not to exercise the
Call Option and not to acquire the remaining 49% interest in Super
Win. Accordingly, the Call Option was lapsed on 30 April 2009. Also,
Samoa Hongying was not entitled to exercise the Put Option and it
therefore automatically lapsed.
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Chairman’s Statement

The PRC’s Luxury Goods Market

Despite the global financial crisis, the Group has progressed well in
its luxury brand distributorships business during the financial year.
It is believed that the PRC is making swift recovery from the global
financial impact and its pace of recovery will be faster than the rest
of the world, as determined to maintain around 8% of GDP growth to
boost the economic growth. The Group remains optimistic about the
luxury goods market in the PRC, as the number of wealthy people
is growing fast, and their willingness to spend on big-ticket items is
also on the rise, driven by an appetite for status as well as comforts
and trappings of luxury goods.

The PRC’s luxury goods market has become measurably more
crowded over the past two years. According to the Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC government in 2009, the PRC’s share of the
luxury goods market is only superseded by Japan with 41 percent
and the US with 17 percent. It is expected to grow at 10 percent
annually until 2015. According to the “2009 Best of the Best Survey
— Preferred Brands of the China’s Richest” (BT & = 5 @A
ML) by “Hurun Report” (“48)EH B E"), the emerging riches in
the PRC are more willing to spend on luxury items, such as cars
and watches, which affirm the strategic approach of luxury brand
distributorships business in our business vision.

Automobile Distributorships

The Group recorded slowdown sales for Lamborghini and Rolls-
Royce in the first quarter of 2009, mainly due to financial tsunami
and the increase of consumption tax on cars in the PRC. Car sales
picked up in the second quarter of 2009. The Group is pleased to
report the profit guarantee of not less than HK$55 million by Mr,
Qi, our single largest shareholder, for the year ended 31 December
2008 is well-honored by the luxury cars distributorships business.
It is particularly encouraging to see a revival in Bentley car sales
in May 2009, which set the highest sales record of Beijing Bentley
distributorship in a single month.
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Chairman’s Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the post-acquisition profit of
luxury car distributorships business was over HK$38.4 million. Profit
but not the sales of Rolls-Royce was consolidated since the status
of transferring of the Rolls-Royce distributorship from Beijing Ying
Shang Tong Trading Development Limited to Beijing De Te Motors
Trading Limited, as referred to our announcement dated 15 January
2009 is still pending for certain review procedures.

Chinese consumers are becoming aware of an ever-growing
number of luxury brands. The Hurun Report in 2009 also reveals
that, the two top-tier car brands under our car distributorships
empire, including Rolls-Royce Phantom and Bentley Continental, are
being selected as the 4th rank and 9th rank of the “Top Ten Super
Deluxe Brands in 2009” in the PRC as “The Best Super Luxury
Car for Business” and “The Best Super Luxury Car for Self-Drive”
respectively.

Watch Distributorships

The Group is constantly seeking suitable super-deluxe brands to join
our top-tier brand alliance. We are very pleased to announce the
acquisition of the exclusive distributorship of a world-famous super
deluxe branded watch from Geneva of Switzerland, Montres DeWitt
S.A. (“DeWitt”) on 24 April 2009 in the PRC, expanding our super-
deluxe brand categories to five, including both cars and watches.
The term of the distributorship is for a period of 5 years and is
renewable for another period of 3 years subject to mutual agreement
of both parties.

DeWitt watches are founded by the descendant of Napoleon family
combining the art of conventional watch-making techniques with
innovative computer technologies to become one of the best super
deluxe mechanical watches. The Group will invest significant amount
of promotional costs for brand advertising and has already identified
a prime location in Beijing for DeWitt’s first flagship store in the PRC.
The flagship store is expected to commence in September this year.
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Chairman’s Statement

Since the acquisition and commenced distributorship operations
of Richard Mille in August 2008, we are glad to report that the
segmental profit before taxation is over HK$4.7 million during this
financial year. Richard Mille’s flagship store located in Lengendale
Hotel Wangfujing Beijing is now in full operation. Richard Mille
watches have recorded encouraging sales in the past two months.

Animation Business

During the financial year, the Group’s comic publications and
animation business has recorded loss of HK$202.8 million before
taxation including impairments of HK$208.6 million.

Jackie Chan Animations, the Group’s international animation
landmark project has completed the first 26 episodes of “Jackie
Chan’s Fantasia”. The Group is actively arranging for its pilot launch
in the PRC with the licensing of derivative products rolling out in
satisfactory progress.

Riding on the positive viewing rating of the Group’s signature
animation project “Shen Bing Kids”, it has just completed modifying
its TV episodes to the motion picture of “Shen Bing Kids” and is

actively arranging for national broadcasts in cinemas.

To preserve working capital for enlarging our top-tier luxury goods
distributorships empire, the board has decided not to propose
dividends for the second half of 2008/2009. We will focus on rolling
out our business plans and look seriously into the resumption of
declaring dividend in the coming soon to share the fruits with our
shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group will continue to put effort to expand luxury goods
distributorships business, while actively negotiating with certain
European and US super brands on selective basis but not limited
to super deluxe branded watches and jewelry. We are determined
to explore more potential business partners to diversify the range
of luxury goods to deliver satisfactory results and secure promising
return for shareholders. In light of the global unforeseen and unstable
circumstances, we shall continuously take prudent approach to
strengthen shareholders’ profit and to sustain the pace of expansion
in the long run.

We would like to thank our dedicated team, board members and
staff members to voyage us through this challenging and competitive
global environment during the year. Nevertheless, given the positive
outlook of the luxury goods market in the PRC and our vision in this
regard, we are confident that we will bring fruits to our shareholders
in the years to come.

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2009
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”)
agrees that corporate governance practices are increasingly
important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence.
Corporate governance requirements keep changing, therefore the
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure that all practices can be met with legal and statutory
requirements throughout the year of 2008/2009, the Group has
complied with all applicable the Code Provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company has been in compliance with the Code
throughout the year.

The Board currently comprises three executive and four non-
executive directors whom three are independent as defined by
the Stock Exchange. The biographical details are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements” section.

The Company has three independent non-executive directors,
representing over one-third of the Board. At least one of the
independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All the independent
non-executive directors have signed the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to confirm
their independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three year.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend policy,
significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts and
major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s business
is delegated to the executive director or officer in charge of each
department. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate. The
Board members have access to appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. All directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

The Group has a clear division of responsibilities for its top
management and separates leadership structure where the role of
Chairman is segregated from that of Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the Board,
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established and that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day business of the Group.

There are currently four non-executive directors of whom three are
independent. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every director,
including the non-executive and independent non-executive
directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least every
three years. This means that the specific term of appointment of a
director cannot exceed three years.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and approve business plan. Nine Board
meetings were held in 2008/09. Individual attendance of each
director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee

meetings during 2008/09 is set out below:

Director

Executive Director
Mr. Tong Kai Lap (redesignated
as Executive Director on
16 June 2008)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (redesignated
as Executive Director on
16 June 2008)
Mr. Wan Siu Lun
(resigned on 16 October 2008)
Mr. Wong Chun Keung
Mr. Kwong Chi Tak
(resigned on 26 August 2008)
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Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERY, EBRH
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee

Director E= Ezg ENZEE FMzag REZEE
Non-executive Director FHTEF
Mr. Tong Kai Lap (redesignated as BRIV A4 (RZZTZNF

Executive Director on NATABRAEAE

16 June 2008) HITEE) 171 NATEAR NATEAR NATER
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (redesignated  E&T A4 (RZZEZENEF

as Executive Director on ~NATABHREE

16 June 2008) HITEE) 171 NATEA NATEA NATER
Mr. Ko Chi Keung BEREE (RZTENF

(resigned on 26 August 2008) NAZ+7<H ﬁﬂf) 3/3 NATEA NATER NATHEA
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong (appointed on ~ #/N\RELE (R-ZTT)N\F

16 October 2008) TR+ BEZE) 5/5 NATER NATER NATEA
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE

Director
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo ERR(FRZEEEE)

(Chairman of the Audit

Committee) 9/9 2/2 2/2 11
Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman of ~ WEI& (#MZ 521 /E)

the Remuneration Committee) 9/9 1/2 2/2 11
Tsui Pui Hung (resigned on (RS NF

26 August 2008) NAZ+RBEHE) 3/3 1/1 /1 N/ATER
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas TEREE(RZEENF

(appointed on 26 August 2008) NBZ+/"BEZT)

(Chairman of the Nomination (BEZE5E81E)

Committee) 5/5 1/1 1/1 1/1
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The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls and discussing with the external auditors for the nature and
scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were formulated and adopted in March 2005.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an independent
non-executive director. Its members include:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas (appointed on 26 August 2008)

Mr. Tsui Pui Hung (resigned on 26 August 2008)

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (resigned as audit committee member on 31
May 2008)

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Choy Sze Chung, Jojo,
has appropriate professional qualification in accounting and
extensive experience in accounting and auditing matters. Senior
management and auditors shall normally attend the meetings. The
Audit Committee held two meetings in 2008/09 with satisfactory
attendance rate for the purpose of discharging the aforesaid duties.
The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2009 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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According to the Code, the Company established the Remuneration
Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the Remuneration
Committee is to exercise the power of the Board to determine
and review the remuneration package of individual directors and
key executives, including salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind,
considering factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the directors and key executive, employments conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance based remuneration
so as to align management incentives with shareholders’ interests.
The Remuneration Committee is also considering all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions in addition to considering
the performance and responsibility of individual directors and officers
by linking their compensation with performance and measured
it against corporate goals. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and approved the remuneration package of the
executive directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about their proposals
relating to remuneration of executive directors and have access
to professional advice if considered necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the directors
and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors and two executive directors. Its members
include:

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas (appointed on 26 August 2008)

Mr. Tsui Pui Hung (resigned on 26 August 2008)

Mr. Tong Kai Lap (appointed on 16 June 2008)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (appointed on 16 June 2008)

Mr. Wan Siu Lun (resigned on 16 June 2008)
Mr. Wong Chun Keung (resigned on 16 June 2008)

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2008/09
to review and approve directors’ and senior managements’
remuneration. The directors’ fee paid to the non-executive and
independent non-executive directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the directors of the Company for 2008/09 are set out in Note
11 to this Annual Report.

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October 2008
comprises three independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr.
Lee Kang Bor, Thomas (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Choy Sze
Chung Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong.
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The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
member, assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.

During the year, appointment of Messrs. Zhao Xiao Dong and Lee
Kang Bor, Thomas as new directors are put to the full Board for
approval. Thereafter, Messrs. Messrs. Zhao Xiao Dong and Lee
Kang Bor, Thomas as the new directors are subject to election by
shareholders at the next general meeting after their appointments.

All non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
are appointed for a specific term of two years and automatically
renewed for one year and are required to retire and eligible for
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in every
three year in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

Each year, the auditors are appointed by resolution of the
Annual General Meeting and directors are authorised to fix their
remunerations for the auditing services. Grant Thornton was
appointed as the auditors of the Company until the next general
meeting of the Company.

The fee for annual audit provided by Grant Thornton for the year
ended 31 March 2009 amounted to HK$1.2 million (2008: HK$1.0
million).

The auditors have performed other non-auditing services during
the year with aggregate service fee of HK$0.4 million. The Audit
Committee has considered based on the policy developed by them
in this regard and made recommendations to the Board for these
non-auditing services conducted by our auditors.
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The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
board procedures are followed and that activities of the Board are
efficient and effective by assisting the chairman to prepare agenda
for meeting and by preparing and disseminating Board papers to
the directors and board committees in a timely and comprehensive
manner. With respect to the company secretarial function, the
company secretary maintains formal minutes for Board and other
meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making decisions.
The company secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing Rules and
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases, including
publication and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely dissemination
of announcements and information relating to the Group to the
market and ensuring that proper notifications are made of directors’
dealings in Securities of the Group.

The company secretary also advises the directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures that the
standards and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed
and, where required, reflected in the annual report of the Company.
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The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (“the Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all
directors have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the financial year.

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting
for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The chairman and
directors are available to answer question on the Group’s businesses
at the meeting. Shareholders have statutory rights to call for
extraordinary general meetings and put forward agenda items for
considerations by shareholders. Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must
be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions put to vote at the
Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll. The chairman
of the Annual General Meeting will explain the detailed procedure
for conducting a poll at the commencement of the Annual General
Meeting.

After the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is also
available to shareholders from the Group’s website.
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The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for the assessment and management of risk. In
meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk awareness
across the Group’s business operations and put in place policies
and procedures. The Company has not appointed an internal auditor.
The internal controls are monitored and reviewed regularly by
appropriate senior management so as to ensure that the categories
of risks are managed effectively.

The executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each business
in the division within the agreed strategies. Business plans and
budgets are prepared annually by the management of individual
businesses and subject to review and approval by the Board. The
Board is overall responsible for monitoring the operations of the
business within the Group. Monitoring activities include the review
and approval of business strategies, budgets, and plans, and the
setting of key business performance targets. When setting budget
and forecast, management identifies, evaluates and reports on the
likelihood and potential financial impact of significant business risks.

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system for its
subsidiary operations and the Group’s finance department oversees
the Group’s cash position.

During the year, the Audit Committee and board of directors have
reviewed internal control of the Company. The Board considers that
the Group’s internal control system is satisfactory.
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The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. HKFRSs have always
broadly followed International Financial Reporting Standards. The
Group has changed some of its accounting policies following the
adoption of the new or revised HKFRSs which came into effect on
1 April 2008. The accounting policies adopted by the Group are set
out in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of the notes
to the financial statements. The directors use their best endeavours
to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects in financial reporting.
The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out on page 45 in the Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009.

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19
to the financial statements. Its subsidiaries were principally engaged
in the (i) the sales of luxury goods in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and (ii) the publications and distributions
of comic books and multimedia development in Hong Kong, the PRC
and South East Asia.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total purchases. The largest and the top five customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers during the year.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 47.

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per share amounting to
approximately HK$17,862,000 was paid to shareholders during
the year. The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 53 and note 35 to the financial statements
respectively.
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In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$105,647,000 in deficit (2008: HK$110,818,000 in surplus).

On 26 June 2008, the Group has completed the acquisition of the
exclusive entitlements to all of the economic benefits derived from
the dealerships of Bentley cars, Lamborghini cars and Rolls-Royce
cars and rights to control, manage and operate Beijing Mei He Zhen
Yong Motors Trading Limited and Beijing De Te Motors Trading
Limited. Details of the acquisition had been set out in the circular to
the shareholders dated 20 March 2008.

During the year, 400,000,000 shares of HK$0.002 each of the
Company were issued and allotted to Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited
(“SRH”), a company wholly owned by one of the major shareholder
of the Company for the acquisition of subsidiaries.
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During the year, convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$66,000,000 were converted into 300,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each at HK$0.22 per share of the
Company were issued and of which 135,000,000 shares were
allotted to SRH and 165,000,000 shares were allotted to two
independent investors.

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Convertible notes (the “Notes”) of the Company were issued on
26 June 2008 upon completion of the agreement for the sale and
purchase of the exclusive entitlements to all of the economic benefits
derived from the dealerships of Bentley cars, Lamborghini cars
and Rolls-Royce cars and rights to control, manage and operate
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited and Beijing De
Te Motors Trading Limited dated 22 February 2008. The Notes
were convertible into shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.22
per share (subject to pro-rata adjustments on capital structure
changes) and matured on 26 June 2010. The Notes bore interest
on the outstanding principal from the date of issue to the date of
redemption or conversion at a rate of 4% per annum payable in
arrears semi-annually. During the year, certain registered holders of
the Notes converted the Notes of an aggregate principal amount of
HK$66,000,000 into 300,000,000 ordinary shares.

Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the Group as at 31
March 2009 are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 168.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Tong Kai Lap (redesignated as Chairman and
Executive Director on 16 June 2008)

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (redesignated as Executive Director,
appointed as Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer on 16 June 2008)

Mr. Wan Siu Lun (redesignated as Deputy Chairman
on 16 June 2008 and resigned as Deputy Chairman and
director on 16 October 2008)

Mr. Wong Chun Keung (resigned as Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer on 16 June 2008)

Mr. Kwong Chi Tak (resigned on 26 August 2008)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Tong Kai Lap (redesignated as Executive Director and Chairman
on 16 June 2008)

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (redesignated as Executive Director,
appointed as Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer on 16 June 2008)

Mr. Ko Chi Keung (resigned on 26 August 2008)

Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong (appointed on 16 October 2008)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Tsui Pui Hung (resigned on 26 August 2008)

Mr. Lee Kang Bor, Thomas (appointed on 26 August 2008)
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In accordance with bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any director appointed during the year will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is the
period of two years and renewable for one year up to his retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Tong Kai Lap will retire by rotation and, being eligible, for re-election.
In addition, pursuant to bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Messrs. Zhao Xiao Dong and Lee Kang Bor, Thomas were
appointed as directors during the year and will hold offices until the
forthcoming general meeting. Messrs. Zhao Xiao Dong and Lee Kang
Bor, Thomas will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE
NOTES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 March 2009, the interests of the directors and their associates R-ZZEZTAF=F=+—0H  KBRAQREE
in the shares and convertible notes of the Company and its EH RHEEN ([EH KEEEG ) 5352
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by §EmMEFE 2 ELMAR HiBE ETRAAE
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures FHETEAFXSHEESFRIE NS AR A M
Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and &EHARXZHAAER AR ([BHF])E &
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) BERKE BB A THNARQG R EHEE
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors B Z ) M Al G ZiE R A 2 R0
of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company RAEQBTRBZ2HERE
Percentage of
Number of issued share
issued ordinary capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
BEERT GAXQFESBIT
EEpMH 54 ZERHE RAEE 2L
Mr. Tong Kai Lap (“Mr. Tong”) Founder of discretionary trust 10,274,400 0.98%
(Note 1)
BRI EE ([EEE]) PRE{EFERISZA (Ht5E1)
Mr. Tong Beneficial owner 4,760,000 0.98%
(Note 1)
= e BB A (PfFEE)
Mr. Tong (Note 2) Interest of spouse 2,651,466 0.98%
(Note 1)
A (ME2) it B 2 (FF3ET)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Beneficial owner 10,640,000 0.60%

BT A EnEEAA

Mr. Wong Chun Keung Beneficial owner 2,464,000 0.14%
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BEmEEA
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Notes:

0

Interest in the issued shares shown in this row is beneficially owned
by Rapid Alert International Limited, a company controlled by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Tong is the founder. Accordingly, Mr.
Tong is deemed to be interested in these shares. The total interests of
issued shares of Mr. Tong are 17,585,866 shares.

Interest of issued shares shown in this row is beneficially owned by Ms.
Wong Miu Ling, Patricia, the spouse of Mr. Tong. Accordingly, Mr. Tong
is deemed to be interested in these securities.

The denominator used is 1,786,152,850 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2009.

Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options” below, none of the directors nor their associates has any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
convertible notes of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 March 2009.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted

pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002. Particulars of
the Scheme are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Report of the Directors

As at 31 March 2009, the register of substantial shareholders

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO

shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect

of certain directors, the following shareholders had notified the

Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the

Company:

Name of shareholder

BRRBEEB

Substantial shareholders
FERE

Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL”)

RAZERBERAR (MBHER])

Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi") (Note 1)
BRI ([E%E]) (K1)

Ms. Zhu Shuang (“Ms. Zhu”) (Note 1)

RELLE ([REL]) (M)

Super Empire Investments Limited
(“Super Empire”)

Super Empire Investments Limited
(['Super Empire |)

Mr. Wong Chun Loong
(“Mr. Wong”) (Note 2)
BiRESLEE ([EERE]) (HEE2)

Mr. Wong
HmELE

Capacity

8%

Beneficial owner

BEmlEAA

Held by controlled corporation
mEEGEERE

Interest of spouse
Pick 428 2 2

Beneficial owner

EDBEBA

Held by controlled corporation

HREGEERFE

Beneficial owner
ExnlEAA

R-ZFBFEANF=ZA=1+—H BREARFARE
EF M HERIIEBHIREFEZTIER
RERMAT BT EXAEEETERZ
I THRREMEARFAREERRD
BIEBTRATMES 2 AR ER:

Number of
shares

R&H#BE

1,435,000,000

1,435,000,000

1,435,000,000

273,435,100

273,435,100

7,856,000

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company
(SR NN
21T
BRAEABDLH
(Note 4)

(BtzE4)

80.34%

80.34%

80.34%

15.31%

15.31%

0.44%
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Notes:

(1)  SRHL is a company wholly owned by Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Mr. Qi is
deemed to be beneficial holder of shares held by SRHL. Ms. Zhu is
wife of Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Ms. Zhu is deemed to be beneficial holders
of shares held by SRHL and Mr. Qi. The number of shares include the
Convertible Notes carrying the rights to convert up to an aggregate of
900,000,000 shares of the Company had remained outstanding.

(2)  Super Empire is a company controlled by Mr. Wong. Accordingly,
Mr. Wong is deemed to be beneficial holder of shares held by Super
Empire.

(3)  The denominator used is 1,786,152,850 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2009.

(4)  Other than as disclosed above, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short position in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2009.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted a share option share scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme
is set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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On 9 April 2008, the Company entered into a service agreement
(“Service Agreement”) with Mr. Wong, pursuant to which the
Company has appointed Mr. Wong, for a term commencing from
1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009, as a creative writer for the comic
and animated cartoon of the Group and Mr. Wong shall provide
creative idea for the comic and animated cartoon related products
of the Group. Mr. Wong shall also be responsible for assisting the
promotion of the Group’s products to the public. Mr. Wong is entitled
to a monthly salary of HK$388,000 together with a bonus calculated
based on the net profit of the comic and animated cartoon division
of the Group for the year. However, the total annual emoluments of
Mr. Wong under the Service Agreement shall be subject to an annual
cap of HK$6,500,000. For the year ended 31 March 2009, the total
annual emoluments and MPF paid by the Group for Mr. Wong for his
services as a comic and animated cartoon creative writer amounted
to HK$4,668,000.

On 1 April 2009, the Company renewed the service agreement with
Mr. Wong for a term commencing from 1 April 2009 to 31 March
2010, as chief creative officer. The major terms and conditions of
the renewed service agreement are as same as the above-said
Service Agreement except that the monthly salary is reduced to
HK$280,000.
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Report of the Directors

On 22 February 2008, Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading
Limited (“Mei He”) and Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited (“De
Te"),
rental,

indirect subsidiaries of the Company, entered into an office
management fees and office expenses agreement (“RMO
Agreement”) with Beijing Ben Li Group Limited (“BJBG”), a company
established in the PRC which is controlled by Mr. Qi, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, for a term commencing from 22
February 2008 to 31 December 2010,
rental, management fees and office expenses with BUBG. The RMO

in respect of the office

Agreement would terminate on 31 December 2010 upon which
it can be renewed by the parties thereto upon reaching mutual
agreement as to the terms of the new agreement. However, the
annual office rental, management fees and office expenses under the
RMO Agreement shall be subject to an annual cap of RMB900,000
and RMB1,100,000 for the two years ended 31 December 2009
respectively. For the period from 26 June 2008 (the date BJBG
become a connected party of the Group) to 31 March 2009, the
total rental change paid by Mei He and De Te to BUBG amounted to
RMB720,000 or approximately HK$817,000.
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On 22 February 2008, Mei He entered into an agency agreement
(“BJBG Agency Agreement”) with BJBG, for a term commencing
from 22 February 2008 to 31 December 2008, with regard to the
agency fee payable by Mei He in respect of the operations of the
Bentley Dealership and the Lamborghini Dealership, the rights of
which are held by BJBG until the actual transfer of the dealership
rights to Mei He by the grantors of the relevant dealerships. Upon
entering into the BJBG Agency Agreement, the rights to operate
together with the entitlements to the economic benefits of the
Bentley Dealership and the Lamborghini Dealership are vested in
Mei He. However, the annual agency fee under the BJBG Agency
Agreement shall be subject to an annual cap of HK$2,500,000. The
BJBG Agency Agreement was terminated after the completion in
transfer of the Bentley Dealership and the Lamborghini Dealership
in May and August 2008 respectively. For the period from 26 June
2008 to 31 March 2009, the total agency fee paid by the Mei He to
BJBG amounted to approximately HK$59,000.

On 22 February 2008, De Te entered into an agency agreement
(“Beijing YST Agency Agreement”) with Beijing Ying Shang Tong
Trading Development Limited (“Beijing YST”), for a term commencing
from 22 February 2008 to 31 December 2008, with regard to the
agency fee payable by De Te in respect of the operations of the
Rolls-Royce Dealership, the rights of which are held by Beijing YST
until the actual transfer of the dealership rights to De Te by the
grantors of the relevant dealerships. Upon entering into the Beijing
YST Agency Agreement, the rights to operate together with the
entitlements to the economic benefits of the Rolls-Royce Dealership
is vested in De Te. However, the annual agency fee under the
Beijing YST Agency Agreement shall be subject to an annual cap of
HK$1,000,000. The Beijing YST Agency Agreement was renewed
with the same terms as the transfer of the Rolls-Royce Dealership
has not been completed. For the period from 26 June 2008 (the
date Beijing YST become a connected party of the Group) to 31
March 2009, the total agency fee paid by the De Te to Beijing YST
amounted to approximately HK$230,000.
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On 30 November 2007, Yuk Long Cultural Development (Shenzhen)
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an office rental agreement (“Yuk Long Agreement”) with BJBG, for
a term commencing from 1 December 2007 to 30 November 2008,
in respect of the representative office rental with BUBG at portion of
Level 25, Office Tower 1, Henderson Centre, No.18 Jian Guo Men
Nei Avenue, Dong Cheng District, Beijing, the PRC. However, the
annual office rental under the Yuk Long Agreement shall be subject
to an annual cap of RMB420,000. For the period from 26 June
2008 (the date BJBG become a connected party of the Group) to
31 March 2009, the total rental charge paid by the Group to BJBG
amounted to RMB352,000 or approximately HK$400,000.

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2009.

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet date
are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs. Grant
Thornton, will be put at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at
4:00 p.m. on 31 July 2009 at Dragon Room 1, The Hong Kong
Bankers Club, 43/F Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, Central, Hong
Kong and a notice of annual general meeting will be published and
despatched in due course.

On behalf of the Board

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2009
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Q Grant Thornton
HE

To the members of Sparkle Roll Group Limited
(Formerly known as Jade Dynasty Group Limited)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 47 to 167,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

19 June 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE_ZZhAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009 2008
—EEhE —ZEENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 THEx FET
Revenue Uy = 5 611,530 156,726
Cost of sales $HE A (627,678) (128,050)
Gross (loss)/profit (£8)E7 (16,148) 28,676
Other revenue and gains Hth Uk 28 K2 Mg A 7 48,436 3,488
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ko $H A AR (29,060) (3,302)
Administrative expenses THER (39,645) (19,360)
Other operating expenses Hibg e & A (132,835) (991)
Operating (loss)/profit K (E1E) 8 (169,252) 8,511
Finance costs b & AR 9 (16,472) (226)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSHLAT (BE) EFR (185,724) 8,285
Income tax expense Frigfi= h 10 (6,031) (2,052)
(Loss)/profit for the year EEE (FB),EF (191,755) 6,233
Attributable to: TH AL EA:
Equity holders of the Company RABRARFER A 13 (189,969) 6,585
Minority interests D ER R 5 (1,786) (352)
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEE (FBB)&H (191,755) 6,233
Dividends BE 14 17,862 2,169
(Loss)/earnings per share for FRAXDAREEFEEA
(loss)/profit attributable to the EEER (&E) BR
equity holders of the Company
during the year 15
- Basic & AN HK(12.6) cents 1l HK0.63 cent Al
— Diluted —#88 N/A FEH HK0.63 cent il
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nsolidated Balance Sheet

ZAFE=HA=+—H Asat31 March 2009

1‘5/;\:
2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET F& T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LR IS L 16 18,772 13,591
Prepaid lease payments FENEEKIE 17 - 8,184
Intangible assets mEE 18 9,778 10,551
Goodwill EES 20 597,334 141,194
Deferred tax assets EENIBE E 21 - 4,388
Deposits b 22 - 50,000
625,884 227,908
Current assets RBEE
Prepaid lease payments e E A 17 - 174
Inventories FE 23 86,761 59,874
Film rights 5 b hi i 24 11,746 46,307
Trade receivables B E 5 5IE 25 22,161 19,729
Deposits, prepayments and other & FEER IE&
receivables & 22 40,977 23,004
Amounts due from related JE U B 3 R R FKIB
companies 26 13,813 -
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMT A 27 698 2,428
Tax recoverable A Y =l #5118 231 775
Pledged bank deposits B MIRITER 28 5,337 4,406
Cash at banks and in hand RITRR 4L 28 71,564 27,172
253,288 183,869
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FERTB 5 5B 29 12,943 9,943
Receipts in advance, accrued TEWFIE BT ERA R
charges and other payables H i & 15 308 30 52,395 35,687
Amounts due to related parties JE A~ B & 5 7RI 31 10,601 =
Derivative financial instruments PTESsRT A 27 697 2,317
Provision for tax T IE 2,552 1,180
Borrowings BE 32 33,424 930
112,612 50,057
Net current assets MEBEEFE 140,676 133,812
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 766,560 361,720
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RZZETZHAFE=H=+—H Asat 31 March 2009

2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M =E FHET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Receipts in advance and TE YR IA &
other payables H th & 5K I8 30 3,919 2,148
Convertible notes Al R IR 33 183,668 =
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE 21 22 686
187,609 2,834
Net assets EEFE 578,951 358,886
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the KARBREFEA
Company’s equity holders LR
Share capital &N 34 3,572 2,172
Reserves f& 8 571,922 349,278
575,494 351,450
Minority interests LPEBRRER 3,457 7,436
Total equity R4 578,951 358,886

Tong Kai Lap

B

Director

EF

Zheng Hao Jiang
BREST
Director

EF
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RZZETZHAFE=H=+—H Asat 31 March 2009

2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo aE FHE T THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B AR ER 19 41,000 150,298
Deferred tax assets ELET IR E E 21 - 835
Deposits by e 22 - 50,000
41,000 201,133
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TEFRIE 22 - 918
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U Y /B8~ Rl IR 19 711,821 121,809
Pledged bank deposits BHEFRITIER 28 3,327 3,294
Cash at banks IRIT4TF 28 39 44
715,187 126,065
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued charges FEsHE A 30 3,996 498
Amounts due to subsidiaries JFEA B B 2 Bl 3k IR 19 21,148 =
Borrowings BE 32 7,500 80
32,644 578
Net current assets REBEEFE 682,543 125,487
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERABEE 723,543 326,620
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible notes AIMKRRE 33 183,668 =
Net assets EEFE 539,875 326,620
EQUITY EE
Share capital fi& 7 34 3,572 2,172
Reserves 8 35.2 536,303 324,448
Total equity EREE 539,875 326,620

Tong Kai Lap

B

Driector

EF

Zheng Hao Jiang
% ST
Director

EF
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE_ZZhAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009 2008
—EEhAEF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FE T
Cash flows from REEB2HERE
operating activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFTISBLRT (E518) % F (185,724) 8,285
Adjustments for: KRBT B IE -
Bank interest income RIT A S WA 7 (530) (1,826)
Gains on disposals of property, ﬁ%%% &
plant and equipment R 2 W 7 (18,178) (86)
Over-provision of effective interest Al R R IR BB
expense on convertible notes FEBR BEEE - (101)
Allowance for impairment of %R R EE S
film rights 8 31,869 -
Allowance for impairment of EEREER
goodwill 8 127,246 -
Allowance for impairment of | B EREEE
intangible assets 8 4,885 464
Allowance for impairment of JE YRR TR R (B e 1
receivables 8 403 108
Amortisation of film rights 5 P R i 8 8 3,757 3,051
Amortisation of intangible assets B AE#E 8 2,715 2,258
Amortisation of prepaid lease A E R IE# H
payments 8 58 174
Depreciation e 8 5,583 1,574
Fair value losses on derivative MEERTHE
financial instruments NI EEEE 8 111 319
Write-down of inventories to net WoRTF E = 0] 838 )58
realisable value 8 46,814 1,791
Reversal of write-down of %@Wﬁﬂ_ﬁi
inventories to net realisable value A& BI5HE 8 (2,236) =
Interest expenses A 2 E‘ & A 9 16,472 226
Operating profit before working EEESEER 2
capital changes K g A 33,245 16,237
(Increase)/decrease in inventories Fa Em) m (51,481) 21,029
Increase in film rights 52 b Wi #E 35 0 (1,065) (29,790)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEUWE 5 I8
receivables (Em) R (2,340) 13,289
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e FESEE K H R IR
prepayments and other receivables SRIER A, () 134,044 (31,552)
Increase in amounts due from related g L 2838 23 &) 31 T8 2 A0
companies (13,813) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables &t E 5 H
i‘ﬂu/ CRd) 2,863 (3,447)
Decrease in receipts in advance, BUHE B ERA R
accrued charges and L feh 5 2B R,
other payables (54,287) (24,481)
Increase in amounts due to J& 1T 8 38 5 SR IR 8 A0
related parties 10,601 -
Cash generated from/(used in) REERRRG (TR 2
operations e 57,767 (38,715)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) ZiE&E  (2)
EENSH 301 (1,088)
Overseas tax paid B oMb F IE (700) (149)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EERRE, (FTR)Z
operating activities IR&FEE 57,368 (39,952)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE_ZZhAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

2009 2008
—EEhAEF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FE T
Cash flows from RETHZEHER
investing activities
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRFIRITES i'i]l] (931) (148)
Purchases of property, BEYME MBS NERE
plant and equipment (12,043) (747)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFEE (1,000) (5,950)
Acquisition of additional interests in Ut BT B A 7] 2 REIME 2R
subsidiaries (4,900) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A 7] 37 (85,251) (2,437)
Proceeds from disposals of LEYE B R
property, plant and equipment R A FTIS R 32,149 268
Interest received 2 FIE 530 1,826
Net cash used in investing activites R &EB A 2R F5E (21,446) (7,188)
Cash flows from METBH2EHESRE
financing activities
Repayments of borrowings BEREE (850) (2,188)
Dividends paid to the Company’s MARTRAREE A
equity holders A2 B B (17,862) (4,250)
Bank interest paid B ERITH A (329) (220)
Interest on convertible notes paid BRI EERTE (7,826) (5)
Proceeds from the issue of BT AT1S 3E
new shares - 76,705
Share issue expenses BITRMAX - (2,333)
New borrowings raised it EE 33,423 850
Net cash generated from REEBME RS F5E
financing activities 6,556 68,559
Net increase in cash and ReRkEEEEERE
cash equivalents ¥ hnEE 42,478 21,419
Cash and cash equivalents FUzReRREEHEER
at beginning of the year 27,092 3,930
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREH) s B35
changes, net 1,993 1,743
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ2ESRRESEEER
at end of the year 71,563 27,092
Analysis of balances of cashand BE&RKEELZEHEHR
cash equivalents EEIM
Cash at banks and in hand SRR BESEF 71,564 27,172
Bank overdrafts RITEX 32 (1) (80)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBASRRELEEEH
at end of the year 71,563 27,092
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WE K &

BE_ZZhAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

Equity attributable to the Company's equity holders

ER=g NG
F 3R 2009

FRRRAREARLER
Retained
profits/ Proposed
Share Share Capital Special  Contributed Exchange Statutory  (accumulated final Minority Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve* surplus* reserve* reserve* Iosses/)’ dividends Total interests equity
REEA
2 REEE AR HRIGE LN SHERE FERfE  (RiHER): BERERE &t HERRER RHlE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tt Tt Tk T T T TEn FEn TEn FEn Tkt Tt
(Note 3.1) (Note 35.1) (Note 35.1)
(Wiss1)  (Mitss1)  (Mitssd)
At 1 April 2007 RZET+EMA-A 1,865 111,190 24 (36,810) 49,394 34 = 116,482 2,081 244,260 2,443 246,703
Bxchange difierence on tranlaion ~ BEENERNERES
of overseas operations recognised R ZEH 28
directly in equity - - - - - 2132 - - - 2,132 - 2,132
Profit for the year TERER = = = = = = = 6,685 = 6,685 (352) 6,233
Total recognised income and FEEERZHAR
expense for the year HxiE - - - - - 2132 - 6,585 - 8,717 352) 8,365
Issue of shares upon conversion of S BT BRZHE
convertible notes Bk 22 5,505 (24 = = = = = = 5,503 = 5,503
Issue of shares upon exercise of IEBREREARG
shares options 3 702 - - - - - - - 705 - 705
Placing of shares RERHR 200 76,800 = = = = = = = 76,000 - 76,000
Issue of shares upon acquisiton of WM BAABETRE
subsidiaries 82 22,766 = = = = = = = 22,848 = 22,848
Share issue expenses ERHAER - (2,333) - - - - - - - (2.333) - (2.333)
Minoriy interests arising from e - NGl =
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) D BRRER
37) - - - - - - - - - - 5,345 5,345
Final dividends paid for the year 3t
ended 31 March 2007 (Note 14(5) fﬂ +-BLEE
EfRERE
(3E14(0)) - - - - - - - - (2,081) (2,081) - (2,081)
Interim dividends paid for the period ~ EE=FZT+&
ended 30 September 2007 AAZTHLER
(Note 14(d) BffmHRe
(His14) - - - - - - - (2,169) - (2,169) - (2,169)
At31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008 H=ZENE
2172 213,630 - (36,810) 49,304 2,166 - 120,898 - 351,450 7,436 358,886
Exchange difference on translation }*’E/Et EHNERER
of overseas operations recognised R ZEXEE
directly in equity = = = = = 2,185 = = = 2,155 = 2,155
Loss for the year AEEER = = - - - - - (189,969) - (189,969) (1,786) (191,755
Total recognised income and RERRRZUAR
expense for the year BXaE - - - - - 2,155 - (189,969) - (187,814) (1,786) (189,600)
Avrising from acquisiion of additional MM A 5N
interests in subsidiaries ERMEE - - - - - - - - - - 2,193 2,193)
Issue of shares upon acquisiton of WM B A B
subsidiaries Bk 800 219,200 = - - - - - - 220,000 - 220,000
Equity component in convertible WEHBARERT
notes issued upon acqisition of TEREEZ
subsidiaries Enis = = 149,679 = = - - - - 149,579 - 149,679
Issue of shares upon conversion of S BT RREEE
convertible notes ¥kt 600 96,936 (87,395) - - - - - - 60,141 - 60,141
Transfer to statutory reserve BETETHA - - - - - - 3,558 3,558) - - - -
Interim dividends paid for the period ~ BZ-FE\&
ended 30 September 2008 NA=TEILER
(Note 14(a) BRiPERS
(HE14) = = = = = = = (17862 = (17862) - (17862
At 31 March 2009 RZZRNE
Zh=t-R 3,512 529,766 112,184 (36,810) 49,394 4,321 3,558 (90,491) - 575,494 3,457 578,951
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * hERERERESEAEERABERANLG
HK$571,922,000 (2008: HK$349,278,000) in the consolidated balance & [ #571,922,0008 . (=TT )\ 4 :

sheet.

349,278,000/ 7T ) °
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Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) (formerly known
as Jade Dynasty Group Limited) is an exempted company
with limited liability incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church House,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business is
Rooms 2028-36, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”).

On 26 August 2008, the Company announced that the name
of the Company to be changed from “Jade Dynasty Group
Limited E28SE AR AR to “Sparkle Roll Group Limited 12
REBE AR AR with effect from 27 August 2008.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are the publications and distributions of comic books
and multimedia development mainly in Hong Kong and in the
People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau
(the “PRC”). In the current year, the Group has commenced a
business of dealership of luxury goods, mainly automobiles in
the PRC and watches in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 19 June
2009.

BFEEEBRAE ([RAAa]) (A
BEEHESEARAR) A —HARA
REAMA I ZERRBER AR H
MM EE A R FEEE D R
#Clarendon House, 2 Church House,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda& & & /&(F
5 & E305% #1 18 E H 2028-36FE o AN
RARHOEBEBERSMER QA
([BEAZFT)) ETiTe

RZEBEENFNA-_+B AQA
E iR A& T A [Jade Dynasty Group
Limited X EAEBEER AR EHRAH
[Sparkle Roll Group Limited 12 £ &
BERAR] RZEENFNAZ=TL
B

ARARZEBEHRIRERER - ARQF]
REWBRAR (AEE]) ETEREE
KAEARKAME (TEEEEMREM)
(TPEDREEEERHMERTRS
BERAEXT - RAFE AEEEH
AtESEHERREXR TE/AK
FERZAERRBERTEZ Fik-

BE-FENF=A=T-ALFEZ
HHBREAN - FENTAATAAME
FRIETIH
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In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards, amendments and interpretations (the
“new HKFRSs”) issues by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), which are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s financial statements during the year.

HKAS 39
(Amendments)

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The new HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the

following new and amended HKFRSs have been published but

are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the

Group.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements’

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements?

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates —
Consequential Amendments
Arising from Amendments to
HKFRS 32

HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures —

Consequential Amendments
Arising from Amendments to
HKFRS 32

RAFE AEEERFEATIEEE
SHMAS ([BERGIMAE])RM
ZEETERER] R ([#a] 2R
BmEEL]) - AT BB RE LR
EASEZAFREMBHRREM  LE

ARBEBMBEHRE -

BRG] ENSBEREE
3958
(BRTA)

A BEMBRELERNH ARG R ERE
RRMBERRZBREZIN T AL EE
REE Aty BEFEHATHHAE-

RAT B mRERETIRE B - THIF
RIREETERMBRELERNDTER M
BREARER MAKRELEESERABE
FEEMEHREER -

BAGIEL BHHmKRZEH

FE15%

(#&1835])

BB EA BERA

FE235%

(#&1835T)

BB ER  RERBLHB

FE275R HR2

(#&185T)

BB EN REEAFZ

Fo85% "E BRI
HEERFEIGR
BRI AREELZ
EVAEHE

ARG HEA SECEEE—

FE315% B HRE

EREIREFT A
B4 ZAEER]?
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_ZZhAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2. B BAH I LBITEEITE

(Continued) WEZER (#7)

HKAS 32, HKAS 39 Puttable Financial Instruments BAEGER FAEERMIAR
& HKFRS 7 and Obligations Arising on FE3257% BREAZEMR
(Amendments) Liquidation' BB

Rl Z539%% &
& 7 B 7
HAERIZET5R
CEHEY)

HKAS 39 Eligible Hedge Items? BEASER SEREFIER?

(Amendment) 253957
CEHEY)
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong BEAUBHRE BAERBEBYB
Financial Reporting Standards? AR ZB157 ] 2RI
(#185T)

HKFRS 1 and Cost of an Investment in a BEAUBHRE RHEBAR - HE
HKAS 27 Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled AR ZB157 7= ) B B ok B
(Amendments) Entity or Associate' kEBGE UNGIWE: &= %N

ERIFE275%
(fEETA)
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Vesting BEMBEHRE URDAERZM
(Amendments) Conditions and Cancellation’ AR B 25% R—HBIEG R
(fEETA) EEicl
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? BEMBEHRE EBE M
AE R 355
(#&1835T)

HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about BEEVBHRE HEEMIAZ

(Amendments) Financial Instruments’ AR ZET75R #2581
(fEETA)
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments! BRMBRE EES I

B S 857

HK(IFRIC) - Int 2 Members’ Shares in Co-operative aBH (HEFE BREREGIERES
(Amendments) Entities and Similar Instruments’ HwERE Z AR K R #R
ZEg) — JCEL
REEN
CEHENY)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded B4 (HEG®E ZHAHAHRN
(Amendments) Derivatives and HKAS iﬁﬁ‘:%*% PTETIARBEH
39 Financial Instruments: 8g) — Bt ERIE395%
Recognition and Measurement — a%%% Fo5% TRITEA:®R
Embedded Derivatives® (fEETA) KatE—-A#®A

PTHET HAs
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes?®

HK(FRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate'

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation*

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?

HK(FRIC) — Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers’

Various Improvements to HKFRSs®

Various Improvements to HKFRSs 20098

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
¢ Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2009 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRS

9 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

g Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or
after 1 July 2009

8 Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2010 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRS

2.

BHREBEERQ A
F 3R 2009

A NEBIT BRI

5 R (1)

A T+=A

55 (BEERTH B BT E°
ZB®) —

B EE13R

BA (BHET®E ZREMES L
HRERE
ZE®g) —
2R E1557

BB (BIBRWH BINEBREFE
HERE e
ZE®) —

ZEE16%

5% (BEBEHH R#EBSADIK
mERE IR & & E2
ZB®) —

BEEITHR

B (BRGBE REFPEEEE
HwERE
ZE®g) —

ZREE185

%18 HEBAMBRE
AR5

%15 WEBBVB®RE
Z H1]20098

1 RCEEAF-A-BREEEBES
IR A K

e RoTTAELA-ARHERHKZ
IR A K

T RCEEN\ELA-BRHERHKZ
IR A K

¢ ORCEENETA-BRHERKS
IR A K

S BIAEBEEARBRSENSEESE
HA-BR-EEAF—A—AHH
1% BIth 2 & IR K

° RoTTAEAASHEREELR

ZFEHRER
! BRAR-ZEZNAFLA - HREER
BEFHEBEMBZEAE

© BEBEEEVBES LSRR
TR MR -F-FF-A—AAH
B 2 4 R AR A
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The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.

Among these new standards and interpretations, HKAS 1
(Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements” is expected
to materially change the presentation of the Group’s financial
statements. The amendments affect the presentation of owner
changes in equity and introduce a statement of comprehensive
income. The Group will have the option of presenting items of
income and expenses and components of other comprehensive
income either in a single statement of comprehensive income
with subtotals, or in two separate statements (a separate
income statement followed by a statement of comprehensive
income). The amendment does not affect the financial
position or results of the Group but will give rise to additional
disclosures.

In addition, HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” may result in new
or amended disclosures. The directors are in the process of
identifying reportable operating segments as defined in HKFRS
8.

The directors are currently assessing the impact of other new
and amended HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
directors have preliminarily concluded that the initial application
of these HKFRSs is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results and financial position.

EETB - A DR A B AR
AR R% 2 E AN AAAKE 28
SRS

RZEMTENRRET BHELSE
AR (RIBFT) [MBRRZ=E
Sl @HAREEMBRER 2257 E
REAFE ZEEIATERERE
AEBZ 20 ARSI AGE KA R
R-AEEEENEHFERARE
GER/NETIRB ) AR BIL R (—
MBI IWARER R — ) R E AR
R)2VNWARFEXIEB LREMER
BWAEKED - ZBER] T EHARE
BB EEELERE BRE
HERIMEE R

BEON - BB IR ELERIESE [ E&EN
Ml AEEHHEXBITIREZTE-&E
FREBRNBEHBE RS ERIFESH AT
REZFAIRBLEDSE -

EEHEHEEMHET REETERY
BHREEARERRAREEZTE -
5 BERNIRRERARAZEERE
MBEBREENAIKRATREHAEE 2 XE
R BRAELEERNTE -
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The financial statements on pages 47 to 167 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
SEHK (the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain derivative
financial instruments which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(see note 3.3 below) made up to 31 March each year.

FATENCTB 2 MK TIRIBER
B EmEER (BB BRE
2A)]) (WABEERTSSTM
REBRM2ABERERNEASY
BHRELER BEESFER([E
BEFEA]) RBRE)MER &
BRENBEREARKIRSE
BHMAERSERARESR LT
MA ([ EMRA) 2 ERAEER

TE o

MUEAVHERERGMAZEIES
ABREMBENTX RIFRHE
B BAREBRRCRZEAFEE
e -

R MR TR E £ RN EE R
EETITESRIANURTE
BSIER - FF EEER AT &R
hEmE -

RRIE ERAEMBRREAR
SR RERR -BEZF A
TIREEEBHBENFHERITEZ
RIET B RHEEL - EBRER
RREGERZFMEFBMOA S
EEEHE S REEME &6
SE LBV EREBEAZBR
M E 2 85 - M 4 W -

AU BREREBEARA RE
MEBAR (R TXHESI)HES
FZA=1T—B2ZHBH/RRK-
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Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation from
the date that control ceases.

Business combinations (other than for combining entities
under common control) are accounted for by applying
the purchase method. This involves the estimation of fair
value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition
date, regardless of whether or not they were recorded
in the financial statements of the subsidiary prior to
acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the
bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are carried
at cost less any impairment losses. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable at the balance
sheet date.

(RPENGCIE RN SRy Sk )
BREERRAREESHPEa
ZEB (BRFERENER) -1
FHEAEER LR S —Hgk
SEEBRFAITRERA R E
ERERZFERFE -WBAF
EEHREBEEASEZBE2E
FRA AR - KB QR AEE IR L
ZBHREEFELRE AR

EHast (TRESHREREH A
A A BEEARR BRI K
BERFEEMENEEBHRER
HAEERAE (BREZMB AR
ZEBRE) MIwWREEER
BERKENE SRR LM B
REZ R - R P HER S
ZMBARICEENABERA
FEEMFAGGEEAGBR U
RAKRE 2@ RRAELR
RAEZEE-

EEANATZEZHREEAA
PALET PR SN R
RRGA MR L AR
BETEME X SRR
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RARRZBERBERA MEA
AR KA BEFREE IR
ARAKHBERABZEERR
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Minority interest represents the portion of the profit or
loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the Group and are not the
Group’s financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders. Profit or
loss attributable to the minority interests are presented
separately in the consolidated income statement as
an allocation of the Group’s results. Where losses
applicable to the minority exceeds the minority interests
in the subsidiary’s equity, the excess and further losses
applicable to the minority are allocated against the
minority interests to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses. Otherwise, the losses are
charged against the Group’s interests. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, such profits are allocated
to the minority interests only after the minority’s share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

> BB A 5 1 B3 R A 4 B
WEMHFEBSWE B KA
R 2 WBARRRREE
FE-

LHEREEERABEEABR
RIAERA - BARREAREH
ANEIEREDFRZY - D BIRE
= G A B RN AR A AR
RORAEINRAEBZEE DR
fief > St e B 15 75 18 7R 3B A% Y VR
NEERAZ DER R - 1B
BB AL ] D BRARR B MG 2 —
TERRAUDET O BRRER I
ARLERRAXREERFORN 2
& 150 A B8 J7 18 H14R & LA 8 48 B
BRAR B ZEEHEBRISLER
SE 2 EEINRR - Wz B R RE
RERFm M - 7% F A R FF U E AR
SEBEAEZLBRREMGES
B THROETLOBERR-



SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2009

RIS M et

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_ZZhAF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:THBEME &)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the balance
sheet date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at
the closing rates at the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with separately in the exchange reserve in equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2005
have been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated into HK$ at the closing rates.
Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of foreign operations
before 1 April 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

Other exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods,
rendering of services and the use by others of the
Group’s assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends,
net of returns and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.
This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements or
when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the relevant
agreements, is usually upon the delivery of the rights to
the customers.

Subcontracting income and income from provision of
after-sale services are recognised when services are
rendered.

Online comics viewing income is recognised on a basis
which generally coincides with the timing, when the
services are rendered.

Advertising income for advertisements on comic books
is recognised on the relevant publication date of the

Group’s comic books.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
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Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. The cost of the
business combination is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination or investment.

In case of the changes in ownership in a subsidiary after
control is obtained that do not result in a loss of control,
an excess of the cost of the further acquisition over the
carrying amounts of the net assets acquired is recognised
as goodwill in the consolidated balance sheet. A surplus
of the carrying amounts of the net assets acquired over
the cost of the further acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 3.10).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.
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Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
following useful lives are applied:

Copyrights 1to 10 years
Trademarks 5 years

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as described
in note 3.10. Amortisation commences when the
intangible assets are available for use.

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method, as follows:

Buildings 50 years or over
the lease term, if shorter
Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years
Fixtures 5 to 10 years or over
the lease term, if shorter

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
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The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
the income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
interests in subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment loss recognised for a cash-generating unit,
to which goodwill has been allocated, is credited initially
to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash-generating unit, except that the carrying amount
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(a) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.
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(b) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the income statement
on a straight line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to the income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases of financial
assets are recognised on trade date. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.
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I

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

At each balance sheet date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment loss
is determined and recognised based on the classification
of the financial assets.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.
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I

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met:

the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about
the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management
personnel; or

the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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I

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in income statement. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions or using a
valuation technique where no active market exists.
Fair value gain or loss does not include any dividend
or interest earned on these financial assets.
Interest income is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies in note 3.5 to these financial
statements.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

Impairment of financial assets
At each balance sheet date, financial assets other than at

fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.
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I

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.
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I

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(a)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in income statement of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in income
statement of the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®)

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and trade receivables
that are stated at amortised cost, impairment losses
are written off against the corresponding assets
directly. Where the recovery of trade receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the impairment
losses for doubtful receivables are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery of trade receivables is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account in respect of that
receivable are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in income
statement.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available for sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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I

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of cars and watches included in
the inventories are determined using the first-in, first-
out method while the other inventories with different
nature are determined using the weighted average
basis, and in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprise direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
applicable selling expenses.

Film rights represent completed animations which are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged to the income statement based
on the proportion of actual income earned during the
year to the total estimated income from the exploration
of film rights. Where there is an impairment in value, the
unamortised balance is written down to its estimated
recoverable amount.

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are
unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in the income statement.
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Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited directly to
equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:BEME &)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.16

3.17

3.18

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short term employee
benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
several defined contribution plans.

3.16

3.17

3.18
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Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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Share options granted to employees of the Company

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of share options expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised
in prior periods is made if fewer share options ultimately
are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium. When
the share options are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants, advisors,
customers, shareholders and business associates

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses immediately, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
Corresponding adjustment has been made to equity
(share option reserve).
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I

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accrued charges, amounts due to related
parties, derivative financial instruments, borrowings and
convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised as
an expense in finance costs in the income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.

Trade and other payables and accrued charges

These financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives, including derivatives which have been
separated from their host contracts are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on derivative
financial instrument are recognised in income statement.
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Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Convertible notes

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

Convertible bond issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are
classified separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bond and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the call
option for conversion of the bond into equity, is included
in equity as capital reserve.
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Convertible notes (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion or
redemption of the bond.

When the bond is converted, the capital reserve and
the carrying value of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bond is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly
to retained profits.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially recognised less
any accumulated amortisaton, if appropriate.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in the income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate. Government grants
relating to the business development of the Group are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected investment period of
certain conditions specified. Government grants that are
receivable for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no further related costs are
recognised in income statement in the period in which
they become receivable.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in income statement on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in income statement over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee
and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount of the guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segments as the secondary reporting
format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated
costs include corporate expenses and other expenses
that cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to the
reportable segment. Segment assets consist primarily
of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment,
inventories, receivables and operating cash, and mainly
exclude corporate assets. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation
and certain corporate borrowings.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:BEHME &)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.24 Segment reporting (Continued)

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant
and equipment, prepaid lease payments and intangible
assets including additions resulting from acquisitions
through purchases of subsidiaries.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue is
based on the country in which the customer is located
and total assets and capital expenditure are where the
assets are located.

3.24 7EH/E (&)

BARXIEEME #Ekik B
NHEERBRNELEEZRE &
ERBEMBARMETZHE
BN ZAE

ERME D RS  Wa HIERE
FHREBEZRFHE mMEEERENR
X AR EEMEE -

3.25 Related parties 3.25 EERL
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is MAMBEHREME - WERALR

considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

(c) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:BEME &)

POLICIES (continuead)
3.25 Related parties (Continued)

(d) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(e) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (a) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(f)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
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I

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 3.10. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. As at 31 March
2009, the carrying amount of goodwill was approximately
HK$597,334,000 (2008: HK$141,194,000). Details of the
impairment assessment are disclosed in note 20.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is any indication that other non-financial assets with definite
lives may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the assets in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 3.10. In assessing
whether there is any indication that other non-financial assets
may be impaired, the Group considers indications from both
internal and external sources of information such as evidence
of obsolescence or decline in economic performance of the
assets, changes in market conditions, economic environment
and customers’ tastes. These assessments are subjective and
require management’s judgements and estimations.

AEBY R REFIEL G RERE A
FHzetEANEES ROEFH
ERERER - RAEAEEEN T EM
BEERHEERABZREEELE
RAEZ A RBRERBEADT
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FARHEES LB EMBE -BEE
AEBAL A EIEEE IR E AEE R
BEET %S5 ERERAMT LM
FREERN  AEBEAGERESE
EEBEMARREEZRER URBEES
HeMBREAGFEZER R HE -
RZEBEZNAE=ZA=+—H m@mE2E
T B #) /597,334,000 T (ZZZ N
F :141,194,000/ 7T ) BB 2 &7F
BRI 203 B -

AEERSHREAPTEREFHH
MmFEHMEERT HREMBETR -
WFEEAZFHR  NEBEAFREN
A0z Bt R A B E 2 A
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary
differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available in the future against which the temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
could be utilised. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at
the balance sheet date and which are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled. Where the actual or expected tax positions in
future are different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax expense in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

The policy for making allowance for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of the receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer/debtor. If the financial conditions of
the customers/debtors of the Group deteriorate thus resulting
in impairment as to their ability to make payments, additional
allowance for impairment may be required. If the financial
conditions of the customers/debtors of the Group, on whose
account allowance for impairment has been made, were
improved and no impairment of their ability to make payments
were noted, reversal of allowance for impairment may be
required.

BEREMAEERMEERZR AR K
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R B 2 RWGIRREE R KT AR
YRR IR 2 T U [ 32 R Al B R e 0 AT DA
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The management of the Group reviews the inventories at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance for impairment of
obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the expected future market conditions and
the revenue associated. The Group makes allowance for
impairment if the net realisable value is below the carrying
amount.

The management of the Group reviews the film rights at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance for impairment when
necessary. The management estimates the recoverable amount
of film rights based primarily on the expected future market
conditions as to whether the revenue associated. The Group
makes allowance for impairment if the recoverable amount is
below the net carrying amount.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are
determined by Roma Appraisal Limited (“Roma”), a firm of
independent professional valuers. Black-Scholes-Merton
Option Pricing Model was used in determining the fair value
of the derivative financial instruments. This valuation model
requires the input of subjective assumptions, including the risk
free rate, stock price, estimated volatility and expected life
of the options. Changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate. Details of the fair value
of each kind of the derivative financial instrument are disclosed
in note 27.

AEEEEBRNESEAEHNFE I
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([Roma ) EE BEMESMIAY
ANTEERERAMER R —KiE
HEEERE -ZMEREREDE
B BIEERRFE RE - HETK
iR R TEHAEAMEEAIR - T EI A B RR

CHeRECEMTATEBE SET
Eem TR 2 A FEBEFBRMHF27H

o



SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2009

RIS MRt

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_ZTZhAF=A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Valuation for convertible notes

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group’s and the Company’s
convertible notes at initial recognition which are not quoted
in the active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. The fair value of convertible
notes at initial recognition is estimated by Norton Appraisal
Limited (“Norton”), a firm of independent professional valuers,
based on actual transactions of the financial instruments in the
market or transactions of similar financial instruments which
generally represent the best estimate of the market value.
The fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition varies
with different variable and certain subjective assumptions. Any
changes in these variables so adopted may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of convertible notes. Details of the
fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition are disclosed
in note 33.

4.
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Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold and income
from provision of services and use of the Group’s assets after
allowance for returns and discount. Revenue recognised during
the year is as follows:

WHAAKEZ EXE EREEm
EH&Z&JEHQMIE/%%EM&TE@EH %5 R AE
RASEEEZBA (BHREE R
NER) RNFERER 2 YT

2009 2008

—EENF —TEN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FAT

Sale of automobiles HERE 424,373 =

Sale of branded watches SHEE L F i 23,524

Sale of comic books HEBSER 86,018 104,624

Sale of comic scripts HE2EBIA 242 74

Sale of merchandised goods HE®Em 855 1,072

Royalty income FEETRE A 8,073 8,398
Subcontracting income for PFEREDBIKRA

animation production 56,472 42,043
Income from provision of RS R RE WA

after-sale services 11,306 -

Online comics viewing income HEEEHBERA 667 515

611,530 156,726

The Group is currently organised into four (2008: two) main
operating divisions, namely, publications and distributions of
comic books, multimedia development, trading of automobiles

and related parts and accessories and provision of after-sale
services and trading of branded watches. These four business
segments are the basis on which the Group reports its primary
segment information. There are no intersegment sales between
the respective segments.

$Elﬁ A ANE (ZET)\F : WE)
FEEEIP A EEE L RERT
X% ZHEEBREES AERABRE
HREMHE S RIBHERIRTE RS
FREH o LLEM%%Aﬁﬁﬁﬁl
ERFESHEH CEE -FHENEZ
W ARAEITIHE o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

yaNy
JJ R

Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March

Trading of automobiles

I

p? A TA sy, \
¥ ()

FEREFA-BREKE D (

Y=
PA=]

BZ=A=1+—HLEE

Publications and and related parts and
distributions of Multimedia accessories and provision Trading of
comic books development of after-sale services branded watches Group
REREBSHR
BERELRA EHESR
ESES SERHRER REERRH 2RIRES 3 1}
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“23AF  -IT/\F -BBAF  -IT/\F -BBAF  -IT/\F -2BAFE -IT/\f -BBAF ZIT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAR TiExn Thn TiExn AL TET Thr TER TEL
Segment revenues: i le:
Sales to external customers  #{9M5E 94,464 109,675 57,863 47,051 435,679 - 23,524 - 611,530 156,726
Other revenue Efolia 18,376 86 4,347 345 24,904 - - - 47,627 431
112,840 109,761 62,210 47,396 460,583 - 23,524 - 659,157 157,157
Segment results PEEE (120,520) 5,522 (82,260) 12,328 38,366 - 4,648 - (159,766) 17,850
Unallocated income AARBA 809 3,057
Unallocated expenses RABERX (10,295) (12,396)
Operating (loss)/profit ag(BR) /5 (169,252) 8,511
Finance costs BEMKK (16,472) (226)
(Loss)/profit before BRETERA (B5R)/
income tax il (185,724) 8,285
Income tax expense FER T L (6,031) (2,052)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (B1) /5H (191,755) 6,233
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As at 31 March

Publications and

R=A=+t—H

Trading of automobiles
and related parts and

distributions of Multimedia accessories and provision Trading of
comic books development of after-sale services branded watches Group
REREBEAR
BEEELRE EREAR
BITER E2-t LEES RUERRK ARTRER N
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Z22AFE ZTT\E CBBAF ZET)\F CBEBAF  ZTT\F ZBBAF  ZET)\F CBEBAF  ZTE)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL TiEx TR TEx TEL TET TAL TiEx TAL
Segment assets PEAE 35,880 180,400 87,376 140,740 692,918 - 52,121 - 868,295 321,140
Unallocated assets AAREE 10,877 90,637
Total assets BEE 879,172 41,777
Segment liabilities HEEE 22,100 19,168 18,486 28,088 33,813 - 1,049 - 75,457 47,256
Unallocated liabilties KARAE 224,764 5,635
Total liabilities Bak 300,221 52,891
For the year ended 31 March BZEZ=HA=1+—HLEE
Trading of automobiles
Publications and and related parts and
distributions of Multimedia accessories and provision Trading of
comic books development of after-sale services branded watches Group
REREESHR
BEEELRR EHEZR
BOEK SHERHEEHE RUERRHK ARIRES k3 1
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“23RF I\ ZBBAF ZIT/\F -BBAFE I\ -2BAFE ZIT/\F  -BEAF ZIT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAL FER TAL Thn TAL FER THL Thn TATL
Capital expenditure ERRY 323 6,188 1,519 8,087 11,139 - 5,951 - 18,032 14,225
Unallocated portion RAEBH 4,161 -
Total capital expenditure EARREE 23,003 14,205
Amortisation charges BHER 1,103 1,924 4,644 3,559 - - 783 - 6,530 5,483
Depreciation bk 529 877 1,461 697 2,746 - 9 - 4,145 1,574
Unallocated portion AP RHH 838 -
Total depreciation TEEE 5,583 1,574
Allowance for impairment of ~ FEBIEER
goodwill 124,539 - 2,707 - - - - - 127,246 -
Other non-cash expenses HFBRERR 4421 940 79,166 1,428 302 - 82 - 83,971 2,363
Unallocated portion AP RBH 11 319
Total other non-cash expenses  EAtIFEE RS A8 84,082 2,682



B R P ot

I

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bz

“EEANF=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

The Group’s operations are located in three (2008: three) main
geographical areas. The following table provides an analysis of
the Group’s sales by geographical market, irrespective of the
origin of the goods and services.

Revenue from external customers by geographical markets:

AEERDR=E(ZFTZTN\F: =&)
TEEER PRIV AKER MR

MmEE D ZHEDH - M T E m MR
?]‘%PK/JEO

miE TS E D 2 HIMNEE K

2009 2008
—EThF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T FAT

Hong Kong BB 103,940 89,303
PRC i 505,990 59,762
Others HAi 1,600 7,661
611,530 156,726

The following table is an analysis of the carrying amount
of segment assets, and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, analysed by the geographical
area in which the assets are located.

TREJREEMEMRE D ZDRE
E-ME BENKREFEREBLEE
FBREEZ DT -

Segment assets Capital expenditure
PHEE BEREX

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhEF ZEENF —EEhEF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FABT FEx FABT
Hong Kong BB 79,448 264,304 11,006 6,049
PRC H 788,596 56,831 11,979 8,176
Others HAth 251 5 108 —
868,295 321,140 23,093 14,225
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2009 2008

—EENF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THER FHET

Advertising income & & WA 29 265

Amortisation of government grants* B SHBUN 8 B 116 48

Bank interest income HITH E A 530 1,826

Exchange gains, net P& 5 U 558 - 86
Gains on disposals of property, HEMHE R

plant and equipment B 2 W 18,178 86

Government grants** B 8 B 4,249 297

Other income from car dealership REREREE 2 EMBKA 24,904 =

Others Hity 430 880

48,436 3,488

The Group was entitled to receive government grants based on
15% of the paid-up capital of a subsidiary of the Group, F R &
ES2IRLAR AR (“Nanjing Hongying”) within 3 years from
the date of its establishment. The amounts were recognised
as deferred government grants and was amortised to income
statement over 15 years.

> The Group was entitled to receive, and recognised directly in
income statement, grants of HK$4,249,000 (2008: HK$297,000)
from the PRC government for productions and distributions of
animations for the year ended 31 March 2009.

>k

REBEFRETIZAEE N E D R
REEHEREFR AR ([FRB
B 1) &R & AR15%=t H 2 BT B) -
HERREKRI AR AR=F-
B RERAEEBUT /B A
WRADIGFEH -

REBEE-_TTHhF=-A=+—HILHF
B AEE AR D RBRARE
NEEERTEBRNRREERETE
£ 2/ B£4,249,0008 T (ZZTZT )\
F : 297,000/ 7T ) ©
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2009 2008
—EZhAEF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FH T
Operating (loss)/profit are arrived at e (F8) wFIE MR
after charging/(crediting): (T A)ATRIER -
Allowance for impairment of R IR EE
film rights* 31,869 -
Allowance for impairment of goodwill* 7522 J (B % & * 127,246 =
Allowance for impairment of B EEREER
intangible assets™ 4,885 464
Allowance for impairment of & W R IE R (B 2E
receivables” 403 108
Amortisation of film rights 5 iR g 3,757 3,051
Amortisation of intangible assets* | A E 2,715 2,258
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE ST HE & FRIB i
payments™™ 58 174
Auditors’ remuneration for audit ZHEI© —m AR R RHE
services provided to the Company Z’f?%lﬁlﬁ% 1,200 1,000
Less: Over-provision in prior years B BT F R EERE (20) =
1,180 1,000
Cost of inventories recognised as BRERIZGEERAE
expense, including BiE 493,711 61,322
— Write-down of inventories to net — MR T EE R I FE
realisable value* 46,814 1,791
— Reversal of write-down of — B Bl MUR 17 & = ] B35
inventories to net realisable FEY
value* (2,236) -
Depreciation*#* IrE™ 5,583 1,574
Exchange losses, net M 5 B 18 5 5 854 =
Fair value losses on derivative MESMIAEZ
financial instruments* NEEEEE 111 319
Operating lease payments in respect HERF 2 E&EHERIE
of rented premises 15,991 1,696
Defined contribution retirement TE B8 5K (' B iR K& 7
benefits scheme contributions for ST &I gt 3K
employees 2,631 1,944
Other staff costs, including directors’  H th B 8 B A -
emoluments BREESHS 77,021 62,813
Total staff costs BB R A4 79,652 64,757
Amounts capitalised in inventories BAGFEZSH (9,516) (14,156)
Staff costs charged to FFAMA R 2 B B AR
income statement 70,136 50,601
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##

H#iH#

*k

The amounts have been included in cost of sales. The Group
reversed HK$2,236,000 (2008: Nil) of a previous write-down of

inventories during the year.

Amortisation of intangible assets of HK$1,742,000 (2008:
HK$2,158,000) has been expensed in cost of sales, HK$783,000
(2008: Nil) in administrative expenses and HK$190,000 (2008:
HK$100,000) in other operating expenses.

Depreciation of HK$1,076,000 (2008: HK$710,000) has been
expensed in cost of sales, HK$2,685,000 (2008: Nil) in selling
and distribution costs and HK$1,822,000 (2008: HK$864,000) in

administrative expenses.

The amounts have been included in other operating expenses.

The amounts have been included in administrative expenses.

##

###

*k

SR AT A E R o A5 B F R
[62,236,0008 7T (Z T NF ) 2
AR 2 & -

1,742,000 T/ EEHHE (2T
J\EE : 2,158,000/ 7t ) B 7 88 & B AN
A 32 88 0 783,000 T R i B B #4E
(ZZEZENF B)ERTHREA+TX
$ - M190,00078 T B E#H (=
T )\ £F : 100,0007 7T ) Bl A H fh 4%
EBRAP -

1,076,000 L& (Z 2T )\ F:
710,000 7T ) B R SHE B AN 2 88 -
2,685,000 LT E (=TT N\ F:
EBIEREERDHA AR M
1,822,000 TtH & (=TT )\ F:
864,000/ 7T ) AT T E A AR 88

SHEAAEMKEEER-

SHEFATHER-

2009 2008
—EERE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER F& T
Interest expenses on financial liabilities X B SEK G ER ~ £ BE B 15
stated at amortised cost: FERE:
- Bank loans and overdrafts wholly —ERAFTHRNEHEEZ
repayable within five years RITERRESX 329 220
— Effective interest expenses on — A MR REER
convertible notes (Note 33) FEREZ (MI:E33) 16,143 6
16,472 226
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the locations in which the Group operates.

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in the
PRC, is charged at progressive rates ranging from 18% to
25% (2008: 18% to 33%) on deemed profits calculated at
10% (2008: 10%) on revenue in accordance with relevant tax
regulations in the PRC.

Nanjing Hongying is established in Nanjing High and Advanced
Technological Industries Development Zone, of which Nanjing
Hongying is exempted from the PRC Corporate Income Tax for
the two years since 1 January 2007 and are thereafter entitled
to a 50% relief from the PRC Corporate Income Tax for the
following three years.

BREFEH DR BEAFE BT ERTR
IR E16.5% (Z T N\F:17.5%)
FTE BN FIB B AR BE AT E G5
ERBURFIRANEBLE R 2 RITH
REBPBEARERE AR AarETH
BARIZABHIIBEAKE Z10%
ZETN\F 10% ) HE 2 TR IR
18%%25% (ZZT T\ F : 18%=33% )
ZREFRER -

MARBEN R R SR ERFERK
oA ERRER TR EFE A
HEERPHNTREEXAEHME
HE=ZFRBERR50%FT BHEEME
i o

2009 2008
—EEhE —ZEEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Current tax 7N B R R 1B
Hong Kong: B
— Tax for the year —AREEHIE 324 1,223
— Under/(over)-provision in respect - BAFERETR
of prior years (EBRER ) 72 (20)
Overseas: ST NE
— Tax for the year —ANEFEEFHIE 1,897 198
2,293 1,401
Deferred tax (Note 21) EERIIE (MFFE21)
— Tax for the year —ARFERIE (441) (329)
— Write-down of deferred tax assets — iR AE T TH B E MUR 4,003 980
— Attributable to reduction in tax rate — B R 4G 176 =
3,738 651
Total income tax expense FriSHi < H &8 6,031 2,062
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Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (loss)/

profit at applicable tax rates:

BERBMERFERB X HES
(&8, a2 ¥k

2009 2008
—EERE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH T
(Loss)/profit before income tax PSR AT (E518) &% A (185,724) 8,285
Tax on (loss)/profit before income tax, SR FTEHA (EHE) %7
calculated at the rates applicable ZHIE REARE
to profits in the tax jurisdictions BIERDE#ERR 2@ N2
concerned HEGTHE (32,996) 2,700
Tax on turnover of subsidiaries, B AR EXE o HIE
calculated at the statutory rates BN F18%E25%
ranging from 18% to 25% (ZEZNF 18%=E
(2008: 18% to 33%) 33%)25£Eﬁﬁ+” 655 198
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARTI W 2 iS5 2 (5,040) (452)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N a] HIJE X i 2 T 75 5 & 36,453 1,935
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERZABATIBEEZ
not recognised Mg & 5,796 159
Tax effect of temporary difference RER 2R EZR 2
not recognised k-4 148 -
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised N4 E &) A A FE R ER
tax losses utilised this year ZHEBEIHRETE (16) -
Tax effect of utilisation of unrecognised ) A K #E 7R 2 IR {7 T8
deferred tax assets BEIMGETE (90) =
Tax effect from tax exemption/relief MIER#G, BEIZRETE (3,216) (4,379)
Tax effect on origination of REBRFEEZHBZE
intangible assets - 871
Over-provision of Hong Kong BEFERBNER
profits tax in prior years 1B BE R 1 72 (20)
Write-down of deferred tax assets ORI RE 77 18 B = 4,003 980
Effect on opening deferred tax A ETHmELEEFY
balances resulting from reduction in RERIBESHR T2
tax rate 176 =
Others H At 86 60
Income tax expense FriS®i s i 6,031 2,052

The Hong Kong government enacted a reduction in the profits EEBRBEMBBH-_SZNZITH
tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect from the year of FEERBMNESHMEHITER THAE
assessment 2008/09. Accordingly, the relevant current and 16.5% ° A it - 18 74 Al Hﬁ& LIERTE B

deferred tax liabilities have been calculated using the new tax

rate of 16.5%.

BE R E16.5%1 &
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The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2008:

twelve) directors were as follows:

ENTHEMN T+ —R(ZFTNE:

T-R)EZZMEWT:

Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
BB
Exwe FERER HEREE: &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER TR TER
Year ended BE-ZE2NE

31 March 2009 ZA=t-BLEE
Executive directors: HITEE:

Tong Kai Lap BRI (R=ZZENF

(redesignated as NATABRAEAE

executive director on WITESE)

16 June 2008) 180 1,471 10 1,661
Wong Chun Keung = k58 180 1,571 12 1,763
Zheng Hao Jiang BET(RZEZTNF

(redesignated as NATABRATE

executive director on WITEZE)

16 June 2008) 1,566 - - 1,566
Ko Chi Keung (retired asE (RZZENF

26 August 2008) NAZ+RBRAE) 75 50 - 125
Kwong Chi Tak (resigned B&E (R -ZZ )\ F

26 August 2008) NAZ+NBEHT) 75 275 5 355
Wan Siu Lun (resigned B (R=ZEZN\F

on 16 October 2008) +A+XHEE) 105 1,155 7 1,267
Non-executive director:  FEH7TEE
Zhao Xiao Dong HOAR(RZEENEF

(appointed on +A+ABEZRE)

16 October 2008) 163 - - 163
Independent non- BTHHTEE

executive directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo £ B 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong E S 180 - - 180
Lee Kang Bor ZHER(NZZETNF

(appointed on NBZ+7"H

26 August 2008) EEE) 108 - - 108
Tsui Pui Hung (resigned it (RZZEZT)\F

on 26 August 2008) NAZ+BETE) 73 - - 73
Total ast 2,885 4,522 34 7,441
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Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Directors’ fees allowances contributions Total
BKER
EEHe $ie RER FHEI R B
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Year ended HEZZTZT)N\F

31 March 2008 ZA=t—BLLFE
Executive directors: HITESE:

Kwong Chi Tak B = 180 660 12 852
Wan Siu Lun Pk 180 1,457 12 1,649
Wong Chun Keung ik 180 1,144 12 1,336
Non-executive directors: FE#iTEE -

Ko Chi Keung maR (RZEELEF

(redesignated as non-  +A—HB#AE

executive director on RIERTES)

1 October 2007) 180 456 6 642
Tong Kai Lap BR (KRBT LF

(redesignated as non-  +—A—HFAME

executive director on BIERNTESE)

1 November 2007) 180 942 7 1,129
Zheng Hao Jiang 25T 180 - = 180
Independent non- BTHHTEE

executive directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo  EHEBE (R-ZT+F

(appointed on +TA+REBEZRE)

15 October 2007) 83 - - 83
Lam Kwok Cheong HEE (RZTZLF

(appointed on +TA+HBEZRT)

15 October 2007) 83 - - 83
Tsui Pui Hung wnE (RS2 LF

(appointed on +tA+RBEZRE)

15 October 2007) 83 - - 83
Ho Yiu Ming (resigned {28 (R=ZZT+F

on 15 October 2007) +A+RAEE) 98 - - 98
Kwong Chi Keung BEg (RZTTLF

(resigned on 15 +A+REBET)

October 2007) 98 - - 98
Ma Fung Kwok HEB(RZ2TtF

(resigned on 15 +A+HBET)

October 2007) 98 - - 98
Total B 1,623 4,659 49 6,331
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11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year included three (2008: three) existing
directors of the Company whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note 11 above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining two (2008: two) individuals during the
year as follows:

11.

12.

BEEME o)

RREFER AEBEYEFRESE N
e AMERMAREB RN IMAREER
RzREBSERMBcHEE-FA - M
BEEENRARBREEAME -

EEMS

EAFEAEBRMSBHALS K
REf (CEENF ZR)AEAT
REEF BE2ME DM X
B {E 2 55 17 PO B « 2 PO A EL B4 A
—EENF W) REFALZHE
-

2009 2008

—EERE —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FATT

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMER 5,981 6,722
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE FIET B3R

contributions 17 18

5,998 6,740
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12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

12. EEME (&)

BEMETF THIER :

2009 2008
— —TEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAExT

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ L=
2,500,000/ 7T - 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0018 T E
3,000,000/ 7T 1 -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ L=
3,500,000/ 7T - -

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,600,001/ L=
4,000,000/ 7T - -

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,0018 L=
4,500,000/ 7T - -

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 L=
5,000,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss attributable to the equity holders
of the Company of HK$189,969,000 (2008: profit of
HK$6,585,000), a loss of HK$198,603,000 (2008: profit of
HK$1,110,000) has been dealt with in the financial statements

of the Company.

13. ARARAEFEE AR (B
B) R

RAEARBRAFBEAEBGGEER
189,969,000/ 7T (=& & )\ F : J& #
6,585,000/ 7t ) F + 198,603,000/ 7T
—ZZT)N\F % F1,110,0008 7T) 2
BEERARAVBHREPEE -
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DIVIDENDS

14.

(a)

(b)

14.

Dividends attributable to the year

g 2

(@) ZFEEREERE

2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FE T 3T
Interim dividends of HK1.0 cent AR EAAR B &A% 1.0/5 1
per share (2008: HKO0.2 cent) (ZZEZNEF :0.281)
— to existing shareholders —IRBRRE 15,512 2,169
— to other shareholders (i) — H b AR 3R (i) 2,350 =
17,862 2,169

Notes:

(i) Subsequent to 30 September 2008, an aggregate of
235,000,000 ordinary shares were issued pursuant to
the conversion of convertible notes (the “New Shares”).
The holders of the New Shares were also entitled to
the proposed interim dividend pursuant to the relevant
provisions in the Company’s Bye-laws. Accordingly, an
interim dividend of HK$2,350,000 was paid to the holders

of the New Shares.

(i) The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Dividends attributable to previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year

GEX

(i)

RZZENFLA=TH®E:
ARBARKRREE & H BT
235,000,0000% & i Az ([ Ax
1) - RIBEARARRAAAE R
R FH D #5E A TR A R i
3K 2 P HI IR R e I
A% 22,350,000/ 7T 2 Ik A T #7
BOFAA-

EFUTRBRIRE-TEN
FZA=+—BILEEZ RBR

B o
i

(b) REAYRERKE ZBEHFBREF

Final dividends in respect of the
previous financial year, of nil
(2008: HKO0.2 cent per share)

BB 2 KA A
“EENF
F80.27%1l)

BRI S
2009 2008
—B2BNE —2ENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET

- 2,081
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The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$189,969,000 (2008: profit of HK$6,585,000)
and on the weighted average of 1,504,003,261 (2008:
1,037,645,795) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2009 is not presented as the potential ordinary shares
had anti-dilutive effect on loss per share.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2008 was based on HK$6,591,000,
being the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year of HK$6,585,000 as used in the
calculation of the basic earnings per share plus effective
interest expenses on convertible notes of HK$6,000.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share was
1,041,8283,300 ordinary shares, calculated based on the
weighted average of 1,037,645,795 ordinary shares in
issue during the year as used in the calculation of the
basic earnings per share plus the weighted average of
1,357,509 ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no
consideration as if all the Company’s share options had
been exercised and the weighted average of 2,819,996
ordinary shares deemed to be issued as if all the
Company’s convertible notes had been exercised.

BREAEEDREARRFRA
8 AFE(LE518189,969,0007 7T

ZEZT)NF 5% HM6,585,000%
L) RFANBDBETEBRMET
¥ £01,504,008,261 1 (ZZZE N
£ :1,037,645,7950% ) 5+ & o

WEE B S RAARS
ST HULRSIBET
ZAS+-RItEE2S

HE-_ZZN\F=ZA=+—H
EtFE2EREFERF TR E
6,591,000 L 2 £ Bt &

P ARG xhﬂx%$§ﬂ2$¢
EARARBRAEB AEIG RN
6,585,000/ 7T ' M Al iR =45 2
BB FEH XA %6,000% 7T °
REAEERESTRT v LTRARK
DN #E S 15 81,041,823,3000% T3
BEFAZEBTEERMET
5 $11,037,645,7950% 3 A1 w0
AARZFERKREEETEM
RABREERTZE @Hﬂuﬁé%ﬁ
#(1,357,5090% * DA & 28 40 A R
LT B AR 2 ﬁaﬁéfﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ
REBTZEBERME TG H
2,819,996/% 51 & -
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Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
R -#E
BF R&E "E &t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
THBT TET FHBT TET
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZ+FMHHA—H
Cost (DN 6,227 2,574 1,599 10,400
Accumulated BEHITE
depreciation (406) (1,614) (481) (2,501)
Net carrying amount FEREE 5,821 960 1,118 7,899
Year ended HEZZZ)N\F
31 March 2008 ZA=t—BLLFE
Opening net carrying FOFEEE
amount 5,821 960 1,118 7,899
Exchange differences BN = - 301 32 333
Additions NE - 421 326 747
Acquisition of WK B QA
subsidiaries (Note 37) (B3E37) - 5,842 526 6,368
Disposals HE - - (182) (182)
Depreciation e E (161) (959) (454) (1,574)
Closing net carrying FROFEREE
amount 5,660 6,565 1,366 13,591
At 31 March 2008 and ~ RZ=ZZZTNF
1 April 2008 =A=+—B8Xk
—ZETNFMA—H
Cost (DN 6,227 9,197 2,219 17,643
Accumulated 2 E
depreciation (567) (2,632) (853) (4,052)
Net carrying amount FEREE 5,660 6,565 1,366 13,591
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Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
B KB
BF ES ] AE &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT TAET TAT TAET
Year ended BE-Z2NE
31 March 2009 =R=+—HLFE
Opening net carrying FUFEEE
amount 5,660 6,565 1,366 13,591
Exchange differences BE N = - 127 16 143
Additions NE - 9,337 2,706 12,043
Acquisition of g4 )= NG
subsidiaries (Note 37)  (FT#£37) - 3,174 1,075 4,249
Disposals & (5,606) (48) (17) (5,671)
Depreciation e (54) (4,593) (936) (5,583)
Closing net carrying FX&FREME
amount - 14,562 4,210 18,772
At 31 March 2009 R-BBNF
=RA=t+—H
Cost B 7R - 23,965 5,879 29,844
Accumulated REtinE
depreciation - (9,403) (1,669) (11,072)
Net carrying amount EIREE - 14,562 4,210 18,772
As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s buildings were situated ﬁ’é:gg NE=ZA=+—H8B KA&EZ

in Hong Kong and were held under medium term lease. The
Group’s entire buildings were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 32).

BT

REARBRBETFHEERF - X

SEz2BFEEMN URSAKH
ERZ—RRTEE (MIFE32)
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17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS - GROUP

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s prepaid lease payments
represented leasehold land in Hong Kong under medium term
lease as follows:

17.

ANHEHERE-F&E

RZETZNF=ZA=+—H K52
BNHEERBREREBRETHHEER
BzHEELH FHEWOT:

2009 2008

—z2hE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHExT FH&ET

Opening net carrying amount FHFEEE 8,358 8,532

Disposals L& (8,300) -
Annual charges of prepaid operating FENKERERE 2

lease payment FEXH (58) (174)

Closing net carrying amount FROFIREAE - 8,358

Current portion it B EB - (174)

Non-current portion ERBNE D - 8,184

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s entire interests in the
leasehold land were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 32).

RZZZENF=ZA=+—HB FAKER
HE+z2HEac B/ URER
SEERZ —RRTEE (MHE32) -
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Copyrights Trademarks Total
i & 5k &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T T T FAT

At 1 April 2007 R-ZZEZ+FWMA—H
Gross carrying amount AR (A 8,289 151 8,440
Accumulated amortisation 25t # i (2,182) (151) (2,333)
Net carrying amount FEREE 6,107 - 6,107

Year ended BHE_ZTZTN\F

31 March 2008 =A=t—HLFE
Opening net carrying FUFREE

amount 6,107 — 6,107
Exchange differences N ER 56 - 56
Additions NE 5,950 = 5,950
Acquisition of subsidiaries U 3 M B A 7]

(Note 37) (M4 E37) 1,160 - 1,160
Amortisation charges B (2,258) = (2,258)
Allowance for impairment  Ji{E %4 (464) = (464)
Closing net carrying FHROFEREE

amount 10,551 = 10,551
At 31 March 2008 and RZZEZBNF

1 April 2008 =A=+—8k

—EENFHA—H
Gross carrying amount REREE 15,455 151 15,606
Accumulated amortisation £ 5t i (4,440) (151) (4,591)
Accumulated allowance EETREE B

for impairment (464) - (464)
Net carrying amount FEREE 10,551 - 10,551
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Copyrights Trademarks Total
i & 5k &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FE T FHT
Year ended BE-ZEZhLE
31 March 2009 ZA=+-BLHFE
Opening net carrying FYFEEE
amount 10,551 = 10,551
Exchange differences =5 26 - 26
Additions INE 1,000 - 1,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B /B 2 A
(Note 37) (Ft5E37) - 5,801 5,801
Amortisation charges B (1,932) (783) (2,715)
Allowance for impairment & {E %45 (4,885) = (4,885)
Closing net carrying FRFREE
amount 4,760 5,018 9,778
At 31 March 2009 R=ZZBENF
=BA=+—H
Gross carrying amount @A B 16,506 5,952 22,458
Accumulated amortisation 2 51 (6,861) (934) (7,795)
Accumulated allowance RETBEER
for impairment (4,885) - (4,885)
Net carrying amount FEREE 4,760 5,018 9,778
2009 2008
—EEThEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH T
Unlisted shares, at cost I BT - AR 150,298 160,298
Less: Allowance for impairment BB E S (109,298) =
41,000 150,298
Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and MEBARIZRKRELAR RERRE
repayable on demand. SKIEE -
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19.

INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2009 are

as follows:

Place/country of

19.

Percentage of
nominal value
of issued share

Nominal value of  capital/paid-up

incorporation/ Class of issued share capital/  capital held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment share held paid-up capital the Company  place of operations
ARF it
BRE/
ERAL/ BIRE/ BRRA
WEARAR RIBY/ BX Fifs 40 R Bl BRRAZEE AEZEAL TEEBREELH
Jade Dynasty Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$10,000 100%*  Investment holding, the
British Virgin Island
Jade Dynasty Holdings Limited KBRS Lidik 10,000% 7T 100%" REZR KBRELES
Dragon Animation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100%  Development of animation
(2008: 51%) and related products,
Hong Kong
EHEARDA 0 ERR 100/ 1T 100% REDSREWER BB
(ZZZN\F:
51%)
Jade Dynasty Comics Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Publications of comic
books, Hong Kong
FEHESERABRA Bk ERK 28T 100% HRESER FE
Jade Dynasty Publications Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 100%  Publications of comic
books and investment
holding, Hong Kong
FEPHMERAA Bk ERR 30,000,0007 7. 100% HREEEERRAZR
KINGcomics.com Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100%  Provision of online comic
viewing services and sale
of related merchandised
goods, Hong Kong
BETARNERAR Bk ERK 28T 100% fRftAE LESHBERBER
fﬁ%mﬁaﬁuu ! éi:/%
Rising Dragon Publications Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100%  Sales of merchandised
goods, Hong Kong
BELREERAA Bk AR 1007 7 100% #HEHE®R BE
Yu Lang Animation Limited (formerly known Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 100%  Development of animation
as Yuk Long Animation Limited) and games, Hong Kong
EFHHERRAA BB el 30,000,000/ ¢ 100% FEDERER FA
Yuk Long Publishing (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100%  Publications of comic
books, Hong Kong
THEE (BR)BRAE Bk ERR 10,000% 7T 100% HREEEE BE
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19. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 19. BﬁE NEEREK Bﬁ% NAZ
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (Continuead) N Zl—"& Al (;
Percentage of
nominal value
of issued share
Place/country of Nominal value of  capital/paid-up
incorporation/ Class of issued share capital/  capital held by Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment share held paid-up capital the Company place of operations
KARfE
BRATRE/
SMEL/ BRITRE/ BRRA
WEARAR Ryt Ex Frfs IR 43 5 7 HRRAZEE EEZEAN TEEEREEHE
Yuk Long Cultural Development The PRC Paid-up capital HK$1,000,000 100%  Digital graphic design and
(Shenzhen) Limited software development,
the PRC
A ERE ORI ERDA H HRBEA 1,000,000% 70 100% EWBEGREGRRGRE
H
BN HRBIEERAR The PRC Paid-up capital US$1,500,000 51%  Productions of animation,
(“Suzhou Hongyang”) the PRC
BEMERFRHIEERAR ([ &N%5H)) =& R BA 1,500,000% 7 51% BUEHE HE
LE=RHBEEERAR The PRC Paid-up capital RMB3,000,000 100%"  Productions of animation,
(“Shanghai Sanding”) the PRC
FE=RPEREERAR([LE=R]) & HRRA AR #3,000,0007C 100%" HEHE - HE
ERBEDEREER AR The PRC Paid-up capital RMB15,000,000 100%"  Productions of animation
(2008: and distributions of
RMB10,000,000) animation, the PRC
HREEHEREBR A HE BRBRA AR #15,000,0007C 100%" HERETHE HE
(Z2ENF: ARK
10,000,0007C)
ERERBEZERAR The PRC Paid-up capital RMB2,000,000 100%"  Publications of comic
books, the PRC
EXERBEERAR HE HR KA AR %2,000,00070 100%" HREEER RE
TREARKAEEHERATA The PRC Paid-up capital RMB20,000,000 100%*  Trading of automobiles
(*Mei He")* and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
EREGRKAEESERDA i HRBA AE#20,000,00070 100%' MEREEZHREGES
(&)~ URRHERRS =&
TREEAEBSERAT (‘DeTe’)*  The PRC Paid-up capital RMB17,770,000 100%*  Trading of automobiles
and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services, the
PRC
ERERAEESERARF ([BR])~ HE BRBRA AR¥17,770,0007C 100%* HEREEZHRENES

AR REERRE HE
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Place/country of

Nominal value of

Percentage of
nominal value
of issued share
capital/paid-up

incorporation/ Class of issued share capital/  capital held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment share held paid-up capital the Company place of operations
KRR
BERITRE/
BRI/ BRITRE/ HRERE
i Y Ryt Ex Frfs B 43 8 7 BERAZEE HEZBAN FEEBREERY
Sparkle Roll Watch & Jewellery Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100%  Trading of branded
(“SRW&J")** watches, Hong Kong
BREGFAEERAA 0 LAk 1T 100% HBEFEES HE
(TRRERKE])
HE(LS)mEERAR (‘RM SH)* The PRC Paid-up capital RMB896,690 100%  Trading of branded
watches, the PRC
HE(EB)BEERAR (RELE])~ HE R RE AR%896,6907 100% HREFERES HE
Wit g (b R) BRERD A The PRC Paid-up capital HK$10,000,000% 100%  Trading of branded
watches, the PRC
IhstEs (LR ERERA A HE BRRAR 10,000,000 7z* 100% AEF&HRES FH

ok

H##

Other than this subsidiary which is directly held by the Company,
all other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

These subsidiaries were acquired by the Group during the year.

This subsidiary was newly incorporated/established by the Group
during the year.

The Group has appointed nominees as the registered owners
of these companies. The Group has entered into contractual
agreements to obtain the controls over the entire business
operations and is entitled to all profits of, and assume the risk of
these companies.

Upon completion of the acquisition of these subsidiaries during
the year, the Group has appointed nominees as the registered
owners of these companies. The Group has entered into
contractual agreements to obtain the controls over the entire
business operations and is entitled to all profits of, and assume
the risk of these companies.

As at 31 March 2009, the verification of paid-up capital was in
progress. The verification report was issued subsequently on 9
April 2009.

* BRTUHEHBARBARRERIEA
Z 5N PA E AT A B9 R AR Rl
ERA-

o ZEMBRARHASERNFERNKE-

o R B 2 ) e A SR A R OO B
M,/ R

" AEEEZERBARZERAFZE
MR A - AEBERI LA D A
EHZERABRZ2MEBEE BF
EEHEA SN AR ARRSE 2R

7
G0
PR

o

# REATREEZSHBARIL K&
BEEZERBARZF AR ZEME
BA-AREBERIZA I - LA
ZERBZEMEBRKLE BERER
HAARMARAERS Z AR -

# o ORIEENF=A=+—H #ERA
ZBRERFINEET - BRERSEERN
“EZNFHANABEEL-
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I

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

The main changes in the carrying amount of goodwill result
from acquisition of subsidiaries as well as impairment of
previously recognised goodwill. The net carrying amount of
goodwill can be analysed as follows:

ERBIEER /T EFEAFEERA
IBRAEEEEFEEERLD 2 AR
AMEAR -EFR R HRHEEMK
BRARZHB B<EMBRITK.

HEZEREETIEZHRENENBR
Ak AERRBBEZRE - BEZF
BREER T

2009 2008
—EERE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
At beginning of the year RE )
Gross carrying amount HERME(E 141,194 124,539
Accumulated impairment RETRE - =
Net carrying amount FEREE 141,194 124,539
Year ended 31 March HE=A=1t—HILEFE
Opening net carrying amount FU 2 FREE 141,194 124,539
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB A A
(Note 37(a) and (c)) (MI5E37(a) K (c)) 580,679 16,655
Acquisition of additional interests in W B BT B8 A Rl BB AME =
subsidiaries 2,707 -
Allowance for impairment B (127,246) -
Closing net carrying amount FRZFREE 597,334 141,194
At end of the year R
Gross carrying amount HEREE 724,580 141,194
Accumulated impairment RERE (127,246) =
Net carrying amount FEREE 597,334 141,194
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The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any allowance for AEZ EHERNREMREEEED
impairment, is allocated to the following cash generating units RRETYIIREEEBMN:
(“CGU"):
2009 2008
—EEAE —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH&ET
Publications and distributions of BE S HMREEITER
comic books - 124,539
Multi-media development Z IR BB B TS 16,655 16,655
Trading of automobiles and related TERHESHREGHE S
parts and accessories and provision KRS 2 R
of after-sale services 580,679 -
Net carrying amount at end of the year F#& 2 FRHEE 597,334 141,194
The recoverable amounts for the CGU given above were L3RS EAEN 2 A RE R8T AE
determined based on value-in-use calculations, covering REEFEEIMEE REFELHF
a detailed five-year plan, followed by an extrapolation of FHE] WAKTEIR NS R R 2 TR
expected cash flows at the growth rates below. The growth ReReE AHEERERMBEELAS
rates reflect the long-term estimated average growth rates for NEEGsREGGTIEHERE -

the product lines of the CGU.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are: FREEFEEZEEREZDAT

Trading of
automobiles and
related parts and

Publications and accessories and
distributions of provision of after
comic books Multi-media development sale services
AEREHEEHR
RHEEZR
BEEELMERTER SREHBEER RUHEERRY
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EERE ZTTN\F ZEBEAF ZZT\F ZBERE ZTT)N\%
Growth rates ERE 0% 3.0% 0% 4.0% 15.0% -

Discount rates BE % 7.2% 7.2% 15% 15.0% 15.0% =
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I

The Group’s management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market’s share after taking into consideration published
market forecast and research. The weighted average growth
rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in
industry reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The aggregate goodwill impairment loss of HK$127,246,000
(2008: Nil) was included under “other operating expenses”
in the consolidated income statement and attributed to the
Group’s publications and distributions of comic books and
multi-media development segments by HK$124.5 million and
HK$2.7 million respectively, which is mainly caused by the
downturn of the economy.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the CGU above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other probable changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates.

AEEERBZIEBRRIBREBER
B ARKB2EZEE R MHHISTRR R
Z TS EBRIBBILERE - TR A 2 Nt
FHRRERERAREMEA 2 TBA —
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁiﬁf\ﬁgﬁﬁl &I
RERFERE D BB 2 E

Fﬁ%%ﬁ BEEE4%127,246,000/8 7T

ZET)N\FE)FARERATRERRA
ZHMEEER] F TRARNEERZ
i%iéﬂjﬁ&éﬁ%%’*ﬁ%ﬁﬂu&ﬂ% 2 5
BB DI - 2RI A124,500,000% 7T K&
2,700,000 L HIHEBEZEER
EAREEEE-

BREELARSELBUZFEREER
Ptz Z AR NREBEEEBRE
I AN FAZE ] Ho AT RE B B = Z A
FRELVEESH B
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BHEEBEGR QA
F 3R 2009

21. DEFERRED TAX - GROUP AND COMPANY 21. EZERBIE-AXEBERAAQF
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences BEERIBNRIEAGE L FHEREED
under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when TREEZECEARE B TR
the temporary differences are expected to reverse. ERFTE-

The movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the ELEHBEE, (AB)RFAZEH
year is as follows: m
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EZhF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHxT FH& T
At beginning of the year REH) 3,702 4,353
Exchange differences I+ =5 14 =
Deferred taxation credited to AWM AR E 2 EERIE
income statement (Note 10) (FI=E10) 441 329
Write-down of deferred tax assets WO R E R IR & &=
(Note 10) (FFzE10) (4,003) (980)
Attributable to reduction in ot = AR e R (FTE10)
tax rate (Note 10) (176) =
At end of year RERK (22) 3,702
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21. DEFERRED TAX - GROUP AND COMPANY 21. EZEHEB-—AXEBEREXAQT
(Continued) (4)

The movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction and

EERBEEE A (RE—EHLE
KFE—SERARZEREHER) RFR

the same group company) during the year is as follows:

ZEEBIT

Deferred tax assets ELEBIREE
Group Company
rEE NN
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Total Tax losses
MERBFE BIEEE = BEEE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHBT FET FHBT
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZ+FMHHA—H - 4,353 4,353 880
(Charged)/credited to (FERAREHINR)
income statement APNLONE (112) 1,127 1,015 (45)
Under/(over)-provision in BEFEEETRE,/
respect of prior years (RRERH ) 107 (1,087) (980) =
At 31 March 2008 and ~ R=ZTN\F
1 April 2008 =A=+—BXK
—ZTZN\EWMA—H (5) 4,393 4,388 835
Exchange difference bE i =58 - 14 14 =
Charged to income WA SRR B
statement = (184) (184) =
Write-down of deferred ~ HiBUEEFRIBE &
tax assets 5 (4,008) (4,003) (787)
Attributable to reduction % = H1 35 FE A
in tax rate - (215) (215) (48)
At 31 March 2009 R-BEBAE

=ZA=t+-A
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Group
r5E
Accelerated
tax Intangible
depreciation Tax losses assets Total
MERBERE BIEER BREE &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FHET THET FET
At 1 April 2008, RZTERF
31 March 2007 and mA—A/-
1 April 2007 —ETLF
=A=+—-HBk
—ZET+LFMA—H = = = -
(Credited)/charged to (Bt AWM ARK)
income statement e PN e (108) (82) 871 686
At 31 March 2008 and RZ_ZZTN\F
1 April 2008 Z=A=+—HBk
ZZETN\FMUA—H (103) (82) 871 686
(Credited)/charged to (GFARAHRR)
income statement ERAREH R 119 77 (821) (625)
Attributable to reduction ¢ & 18 FE {5
in tax rate 6 B (50) (39)
At 31 March 2009 R-ZZBZBNE
=H=+-—H 22 - - 22

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority and the entity intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

fiid B BORBIITH N 2 R A BTHITR IR
BERENHHNBRE  METHEHR
BRI B ERAENF
BMELEFE ARASEREENFESR
B AEERBEENEEAREH-
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At the balance sheet date, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of HK$53,656,000 (2008: HK$36,267,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. At 31 March
2008, deferred tax assets had been recognised in respect of
HK$23,772,000 of such losses as the directors consider that
the realisation of these deferred tax assets through the future
taxable profits of those group companies which incurred these
tax losses was probable. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised (2008: HK$12,495,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams of those subsidiaries which incurred
these tax losses.

REER AEBEEARSAMIEEIE
& 5153,656,0008 L (=TT N\ F:
36,267,000/ 7T ) Al A VE K 85 7K 2K fE 3R
Bafl RZTEENF=A=1+—8"
HRNEZRABEBEE23,772,000%
TREEBECEB AR 2 RKRERT
A B IRRETIBE E 2 A fE K -
HMERZEBERERZSEEHBEAE -
EREFLERBEEBIMNEARZ
ARENREEBRA ZE A& HE
WHERBERECNEBEEE (ZZTN\F:
12,495,000/ 7T ) °

Group Company
rEE RAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZEZENE ZETNF —EEAE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FET TR FET
Deposits Be 27,441 50,572 - 50,000
Prepayments B TIE 8,825 12,599 - 918
Amount due from a fEU BB A
related party (Note (i)) (B =EG) 2,658 4,881 - =
Other receivables H At jE W kIR 2,053 4,952 - =
40,977 73,004 - 50,918
Deposits classified as GEAERD KRS
non-current (Note (ii)) GEIO)) - (50,000) - (50,000)
Current portion TENE 40,977 23,004 - 918

The carrying amounts of amount due from a related party and
other receivables of the Group approximate their fair values as
these financial assets which are measured at amortised cost,
are expected to be repaid within a short timescale, such that
the time value of money impact is not significant.

F S 55 [ B A B & 77 K 0B I EL A R WK
IR IR ARG E jﬁEHHEAEE%
MABE UHEeERREEXEY
BEX Hwtﬁ/fﬁﬂﬁgzﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁi,ﬁ\ﬁ
FEERSE
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22,

23.

24.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The related party is a relative to executive directors of the
Company, Mr. Wong Chun Keung and Mr. Tong Kai Lap. The
amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(i) As at 31 March 2008, the Group had made deposits of
HK$50,000,000 in respect of an acquisition of subsidiaries.
Subsequently, during the year, the amount was used to set off
the cost of the acquisitions.

22,

BHEEBEGR QA
F 3R 2009

BRe FARAFTERHEMER
RE-AEBRAEARQF (#)

i3 :

() FBEIRARARATESZTAERBELEE
RERRILEE 2 BB - ZE R IAR
IR R B RIRBRERE-

(i) RKRZZZENF=A=+—H xE@E5
I % /8 A 7] & 150,000,000/ 7t 2 ¥
© o BB ZERBEERFRNAEEH
Wt B B A o

INVENTORIES - GROUP 23. FE-FK&KH
2009 2008
—z2hE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Raw materials and consumables R MR K H FE 5,737 457
Work-in-progress £ 8 m 24,111 59,012
Merchandised goods and comic books & K &&= =58 56,913 405
86,761 59,874

The work-in-progress represents production and other direct
costs in relation to the production of animations.

During the year, the Group reversed HK$2,236,000 (2008: Nil)
being part of inventory write-down made in prior years that
was subsequently not required as the inventory was sold at its
original cost. The amount reversed has been included in “cost
of sales” in the income statements.

FILM RIGHTS - GROUP

The film rights represent production and direct costs of
completed animations less amortisation. Allowance for
impairment of HK$31,869,000 was made during the year
ended 31 March 2009 (2008: Nil).

24.

ERmERREEE MM 2 RIFKA R
Hp AR

BREFEHR 2 BHFEERREKAH
B MEEBAEEBE RERE LD
R4 582,236,000/ 7T ( —EE )\ 4F
M) o ZERO 2 REEF ARARE
Z [SHERAR] F o

ThRRE-AKE

ERREEDRIERE ZEIEREEX
N -BE_TETNF=ZA=1+—
HIEFE B EH R E%E#31,869,0007%8
T(ZEZNFE &) -
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I

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the balance sheet
date, based on the invoice dates, and net of impairment losses,

ERNBZ AR RAMRRERBIRER 2 BK
BEREREEBR ZREDTAOT

is as follows:
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
0 — 30 days 0 - 30H 7,876 11,167
31 — 60 days 31 - 60H 3,377 4,200
61 — 90 days 61 - 90H 1,571 915
Over 90 days im0 H 9,337 3,447
22,161 19,729

The Group’s sales to its customers are mainly on credit. Except
as detailed below, the credit period is generally for a period of
two to three months for major customers. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and has a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 14 April 2009, the
Group had entered into an agreement with one of the major
customers that approximately HK$4,933,000 of the trade debts
due from this customer at 31 March 2009 is to be settled by 22
installments.

The carrying amount of trade receivables is considered a
reasonable approximation of fair value as this financial asset,
which is measured at amortised cost, is expected to be paid
within a short timescale, such that the time value of money
impact is not significant.

REEBXTZEUEEFRABERERPETR
S BRTXFLEN XBEFZEE
H—REZE=@A -AEEE igﬁ
KU FE B 5 RIBE TR IE B E
ﬂmﬁhﬁ$ﬁﬁuﬁdﬁﬁﬂk
BREEEABTHENOBREL-

RZZEZENFMNA+MAE BEER
% AEEBRE—NETERFFN—H
e Bl ZBPR_2ZEZENF=A
=+—HZE SR #%4,933,000% 7T
15 LA22 83 5 HA (< 5h05 18 -

R MR 5 IR TSR B SHR AN E T &
WIERARER AR - AT EERE
BEXEYITEN HZETREELZ
FEEERSAFEEZAEMGE-
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Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate:

FEWE 5B B3 T O A E B8R
RERSINZEBEZRHE

2009 2008
—BENF —BENF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FTHExT FH&TT

Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TARE]) 3,147 2,679
United States Dollars (“US$”) ZEx([ZEmx]) 1,009 836

At each balance sheet date, the Group’s trade receivables
are individually reviewed to determine if impaired. The amount
of impairment loss of individually impaired receivables, if any,
is recognised based on the credit history of its customers,
such as financial difficulties or default in payments, and
current market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment
allowance is recognised. As at 31 March 2008 and 2009, no
specific impairment allowance has been made. The Group does
not hold any collateral over the trade receivable balances.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not impaired is as
follows:

REBEER AEEHERERE S
REETEMN BRI AEER S HBER
18 - fE 5l 2 Bt B Y R IE (20 F ) 2R
BEEESREREEPZEELCHE (I
B 7 IR B = BRE FGIOR) RRTTMOR
TURR HERBRRANEHEES-
RIBZNGFR-_ZBZNF=A=+—
B BEELEMREEREER N
=3 U R E SRR SR BT
{a] #5942 ©

REERWESHRBZREDTAOT

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—2ENE —2T)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired A8 HA TR R R E 12,670 17,534
Not more than 1 year past due AR R —F 9,491 2,195

22,161 19,729
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continuea) 25.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to certain customers from whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on the past experience, management
believed that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances were considered fully
recoverable.

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 26.

COMPANIES - GROUP

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The related companies are companies in which
Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi"), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, has beneficial interests.

BWEZRE-FA&HE @)

WAREH B RBE 2 BUE ZKIBTIIR
BETHORALBENCIRZIEFS

B BB R 2 BB R 5 30R TR
BAREARTBEREZBIES
REBEER TRERE MRER
BEAEHREABE  AREHRHE
AT 2BIRE - 5B AR I B 1R
A -

BURBAELARRE-XREEH

ZERASEEAR RERRERE
B-BERRRARAETERREZL
A (BERE]) HREREmEEZ AT -

2009 2008
—EERE —ZEEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Beijing Ying Shang Tong Trading tRERBAESHERE
Development Limited R AT 12,908 =
Beijing Ben Li Group Limited IEREBHNEEBRAA 905 =
13,813 -
27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - 27. fTHE ST E XK
GROUP
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH T
Equity derivative — Call option BAPTET R -8R
classified in current assets MBNEECRE 698 2,428
Equity derivative — Put option BRATETAE-—S8R
classified in current liabilities MENBE 2 RG B 697 2,317
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During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group entered
into an option deed in respect of an acquisition of further
interests in subsidiaries (Note 37(c)). The equity derivatives are
not designated as hedging instrument according to HKAS 39
and are measured at fair value valuated by Roma by using the
Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model. The inputs into
the model for the value of the derivative financial instruments
were as follows:

REBEZE2-_ZEENF=ZA=1+—HILHF
B AEERWERNE AR 2 EIMERS
RIS — 10 BARE R 49 (Bt 5E37(c)) < IR IR
BB LT ERE395  MALTTET AW
R F A ¥4 T A H LARomaf®
xR TEERLMTE 2 AT EER
E-ABTAESRTEEEZERA &
UNERCENE

2009 2008
—EENF —EIT)NF

Call option Put option Call option Put option

R ok H A RIE Roh B

Risk free rate B B b 0.043% 0.043% 1.014% 1.014%

Stock price (HK$'000)  R&fE (F#&7T) 10,186 10,186 10,186 10,186
Exercise price IHRE(FHET)

(HK$’000) 10,186 10,186 10,186 10,186

Volatility R i@ 59.94% 59.94% 57.27% 57.27%

Expected option life TEET HA#E & Y 0.08 year 0.08 year F 1.08 year £ 1.08 year £

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Certain of the Group’s and the Company’s
bank deposits have been pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group and the Company (Note 32).
As at 31 March 2009, the deposits bore interest rates ranging
from 0.01% to 0.77% per annum (2008: 1.60% to 4.63% per
annum). The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant bank borrowings.

Included in cash at banks and in hand of the Group is
approximately HK$42,600,000 (2008: HK$24,234,000) of
pbank balances denominated in RMB and is placed at banks in
the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

RITHETFZMETNIETHRITEREIN
FEFE - AEBERARAE TRITE
REEERE LIRS ASEERARQAE
B2 —RIBITRE ([:E32) - RZTE
NE=ZR=+—8" ' FFUANF0.01E
Z077TE (ZZEENF : FF F1.60E
ZF4.63F) 2 FHNEE B - BEPRITIF
FEBRENEBIRTEEERR-

TEBROTERBEFRED
42,600,000 L (=T )\ §F:
24,234,000 7T ) 2 BAITE R TIAA
REHE UERFPEHZRITR AR
BEAAEHARAHEMEE - RiEPE
A 2 SN B 3R fik B % A5 B - S BB IR A
[EEIEMTE NEBBENEEELS
HNE RIREB 2 RITHARB IR AR
fth B HE o
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20. ENESRE-FKE

29.

30.

TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the
balance sheet date:

NTRENESFANGEE B ZIREKD

#r

2009 2008

—EENF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T THET

0 - 30 days 0-30H 5,110 2,842
31 - 60 days 31 -60H 1,653 1,873
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 2,092 2,218
Over 90 days B0 H 4,088 3,010
12,943 9,943

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES -

30. EIRHE M RAREM
(TR TV EN

GROUP AND COMPANY

Group Company
~EE AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAE —EENF —ETAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET TR FTET
Current portion: TENE4D
Receipts in advance B IE 31,689 14,524 - =
Accrued charges & 15,785 20,413 3,996 498
Amount due to minority  FEfTHt B2 & EAL R
shareholder of a Z I (FEEE®))
subsidiary (Note (i)) - 160 - -
Other payables H A fEI 5K 4,921 590 - =
52,395 35,687 3,996 498
Non-current portion:  F 7R B4 :
Receipt in advance AR IE (B EE (i) )
(Note (i) 1,424 1,506 - -
Accrued charges st &R (B i)
(Note (i) 2,495 642 - -
3,919 2,148 - -
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30. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED 30. ARFE -ETERAREM

CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES -
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continuead)

The carrying amounts of current portion of accrued charges,

amount due to minority shareholder of a subsidiary and other

payables approximate their fair values as these financial

liabilities which are measured at amortised cost, are expected

to be repaid within a short timescale, such that the time value

of money impact is not significant.

Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

The amount due to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Pursuant to the investment agreement entered into between
the Nanjing Hongying and MR mHiXkMMEXHAEREEEZE
&, the Group was entitled to receive government grants based
on 15% of paid-up capital of the Nanjing Honying within 3 years
from the date of its establishment. The grants are to be used
in the business development of Nanjing Hongying. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Nanjing Hongying’s operating tenure should
be not less than 15 years during which the principal place
of business should be retained in 8 R = ¥ 5% i 2 3 5 2 &
The government grants received are amortised over 15 years
accordingly and they have remaining amortisation period of 13
years.

The Group enjoys a rent free period on leasing of office premise
and showrooms ranging from 3 to 5 years. This lease incentive
received is recognised in the income statement as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments.

BARE-AXEERERT

HREFER EBNHMBRTALHRR
TR K B Al R S RIR TS 12 B X AN BT
E-URHRESRANEER AHEE
REEBEFEYITEXN BHFESRE
BZREE D 2 FREEREL A FEER

++

() ENNEREDBBRZFAREE
A RBRIEEREE-

(i) RIRFD R B R R TR A 2
EEEEZERIUIRE R
SEERUEDZEAAEESHREER
15%5T & 2 BN FEB) - B B AR L
B Rt BH=5 - ZMB AR R
BEZEBRR - RIFZ W A0S
BzREFHREA LN+ HF PR
TEEEMBAERNE RS RME
FERERE - FL - TRELZ B RBIE
B AFEE Mek T 2 EHHR/13
o

(i) AEEAEERLCENEREEEN
FEERF2zRHEH - WHEBKRZE
SERBINWARKRERRSEEFK
TR AR 2 HEARER D -
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31. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES - 3. BERBELRE-—FKE

GROUP

2009 2008

—EEAF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

Amount due to a related company FE A —FBEE R RIFRIE 8,565 =

Amount due to a shareholder JE — B R E B 2,036 =

10,601 -

32.

Amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

The related company is a company in which Mr. Qi has

beneficial interests.

ENRBESEER 2B RBERE

& o

ZRABERBRERERRE
_jo

T

miES IR

BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 2. BE-—AREBRAKXADF
Group Company
REH AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE —ZENF —EEAE —ZENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHERT FHET
Current KEE
Bank overdrafts, RITE S (EIEH)
unsecured 1 80 - 80
Bank loans, secured RITER (BHEM) 13,423 850 7,500 =
Other loans, unsecured  E it & 5% (MK FR) 20,000 = - =
33,424 930 7,500 80
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I

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are:

AEERBEZERNE (RERETHF
)R

2009 2008
e Ain —TTN\F

RITEX (BEM)

Bank overdrafts, unsecured

RITER (BEM)

Bank loans, secured

Other loans, unsecured HEE (EIEH)

As 31 March 2009, certain bank deposits were pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group and to the Company. The bank loans were also secured
by corporate guarantees executed by the Company and a
subsidiary.

At 31 March 2008, the banking facilities of the Group were
secured by the charges over the Group’s entire buildings (Note
16), interests in leasehold land (Note 17) and certain bank
deposits (Note 28) and corporate guarantees executed by the
Company. During the year ended 31 March 2009, the land and
buildings were disposed of and the pledges were released.

Other loans are unsecured, interest bearing of 4% per annum
and repayable within one year.

The carrying values of current borrowings are considered to
be a reasonable approximation of fair values due to their short

term maturities.

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in HK$.

Hong Kong Dollar
Prime Rate + 0.5% Prime Rate + 0.5%
BLIREERE BT RE BN X
+0.5% +0.5%

Hong Kong Dollar

HIBOR + 1.0% HIBOR + 2.0%

ERBTEE BRHRITRE
HFEE +1.0% KEE +2.0%
4% =

R-ZBZNF=ZA=1+—RH HTHT
FREBERTRT KEEAEE LK
RAEERZ —RIRTTBE - RITEFIN
HARB R —MBARRL 2 BFEER
TR o

RZBEENF=ZA=+—H T&EEE
TFIRITHEHFMEET (HE16) -HE
TR (MIEE17) RE FRITFER (M
F128) AR A R BIF L 2 B EE
RIEEB -BHE_TSTNF=A=+—
HEFEAN THEREFEHRLE M
IR E AR -

HEMERRELRIR  RENERIEFTE
WER—FANEE-

HREAHEEREHAZE HERE
EREASEMERNFEERES-

AEBEZEEABTTEE.
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The Group and the Company have two types of convertible
notes. Convertible notes of the Group were issued on 19
October 2004 (“Type | Notes”) upon completion of the
purchase of 49% equity interests in Jade Dynasty Holdings
Limited. Type | Notes were convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company at a price of HK$0.5 (subject to adjustments) and
had already been matured on 18 October 2007.

Convertible notes of the Group were issued on 26 June 2008
(“Type Il Notes”) upon completion of the acquisition of the
exclusive entitlements to all of the economic benefits derived
from the dealerships of Bentley cars (the “BL Dealership”),
Lamborghini cars (the “LB Dealership”) and Rolls-Royce
cars (the “RR Dealership”) and rights to control, manage and
operate Mei He and De Te. Type Il Notes are convertible into
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of
HK$0.22 (subject to pro-rata adjustments on capital structure
changes), 4% per annum interest bearing and will be matured
on 26 June 2010 (the “Maturity Date”). Unless previously
converted, the Company will redeem Type Il Notes on their
maturity date.

The fair value of the liability component, included in the
convertible bonds, was calculated using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The fair value
of the equity conversion component, which is included in
shareholders’ equity in capital reserve, was valued by the
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model.

AREBRARABEMBIRRERE-
AEBZAABRREBER_ZTZTWMF
4+ A+ N B & TR B AJade Dynasty
Holdings Limited 49% % 7~ # 25 B 3517
(IB—8HER]) -F—HEREDIK0S5
BT (A TRAB)ZERELBRAXRRAT
TEKR WER-_TTLF+ATNH

o

=

g
AEES—BABREBR-_ZTZ)\F
ANAZTARNB EEREREBENRE
BIEERRE RS IHEATTE 2R
E(HRATERNAEREE]  [HIF
BERRBRERE] REMFEMTER
BREIDAEE2E2HLEEN = 2 BR
R LAREEREF 2 ZEGE B8
EREERERET([EEERE]) -
FEZBEEETIR022F L (A EAR
EEZHRLIOAR) 2ERLBRA
1,200,000,00088 A1 7l & @ % - f2 7
KABHENB TR =T —ZTF A
ZHNB([REB])RE - BRIEZRE
BRI RRARAGEREIEAER S
“HERK-

AR ESFFRERD < A FEETIE
RREZFIRBREFERZMENE
STE BB ABED 2 A TFEENER
M E EEIGETTHE St AEANH R
ZHRRERA -
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The convertible bonds recognised in the balance sheet are

REEHEERZATRRERAEN

calculated as follows:

T

2009 2008

—EEAE —ZEEN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHExT FET

Balance at beginning of the year F Y EE A - 5,603

Issuance of the Notes of the Company AR &3 ITE#E 235,492 =

Conversion to shares of the Company .3 &R &% 5 (60,141) (5,503)
Effective interest expenses for the year FREEEF 25 % (H5$9)

(Note 9) 16,143 6

Over-provision of effective interest BEFEERANERY 2

expenses in prior years i8S - (101)

Interest paid B E (7,826) (5)

Balance at end of the year FIR S 183,668 =

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible
bonds at the date of issue amounted to approximately
HK$235,492,000. The fair value is calculated using discounted
cash flow method at a rate of 10.1%.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the convertible bonds
at the principal amount of HK$66,000,000 were converted into
ordinary shares of the Company and total number of ordinary
shares converted was approximately 300,000,000 (Note 34).

Interest expenses on the convertible bonds are calculated
using the effective interest method by applying the effective
interest rate of 10.1% to the liability component.

ABEESFBESINETEHRZIRF
B184)/235,492,000/& 7T - A FEERE
RARBR S REELNE10.1%H -

REBEE-_TETAF=-ZA=+—HILF
€ » 7N 4 %866,000,0005% 7T 2 7] #2 A% (&
SEHBMARDTERARKR B HKY
3B I 48 B4 A£300,000,0008% (Ff 7%
34) o

ABmBHEEZFEBE IRER A
% RAE BB 2 BB E101%5t
Ho
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Number of
Notes ordinary shares Amount
Bt E ZEREE EE ]
HK$'000
TET
Authorised: EERAK:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each &% E{E0.002/8 7T 2
AR
At 1 April 2007, RZZEZ+FEA—H-
31 March 2008,1 April 2008 and —EENF
31 March 2009 ER=EF=06"
“EEN\FEOA-HRK
“ETNAF=A=+—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAZKRAE:
Ordinary shares of BREE0.0028 T2
HK$0.002 each AR
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZLFMOA—H 932,394,450 1,865
Issue of shares upon conversion of R AR Z B EE
convertible notes BTN 11,054,400 22
Issue of shares upon exercise of R IREEIT R R ETRG
share options 1,904,000 3
Placing of shares il & k5 100,000,000 200
Issue of shares upon acquisition of — FA UK BE T B A =) B 317 i 12
subsidiaries 40,800,000 82
At 31 March 2008 and RZBEENF=ZA=+—HBHXK
1 April 2008 “ZZTN\FWMAE—H 1,086,152,850 2,172
Issue of shares upon acquisition of P4 B& Bt B A &1 8 2 17 R {7
subsidiaries (i) 400,000,000 800
Issue of shares upon conversion of P A #i% = J5 8 i b
convertible notes BTk (ii) 300,000,000 600

At 31 March 2009 R-ZBZEAF=A=1+—H 1,786,152,850 3,572
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Notes:

(i)

During the year, 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.002
each were issued upon acquisition of subsidiaries as part of
consideration (Note 37(a)). The fair value of the shares issued at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$220,000,000.

During the year, Type Il Notes with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$66,000,000 were converted into 300,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.002 each at a conversion price of HK$0.22 per
share.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares
issued for the acquisition under a group reorganisation in
1997.

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 10 August 2004, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the
provisions of section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus account
against the accumulated losses. The remaining balance of
the contributed surplus amounted to HK$49,394,000.

GEE

FARACREEHREBEARED KT
400,000,000/ & % [ 60.0027% T .2
TRBIERKE D (HE37()) °
RUBRAMBETZROAFEES
220,000,000/ 7T ©

FR - ALFEA 66,000,000/ T2 F
TREBEEBRESR022BETESE
# 73300,000,0004% & % [ {€0.002/%
TTZ BB

# Bl 1ok 18

AEBZRREBEARRBRE
MEBARKNERBZERMZE
BER-NAWNELFETEEREA
FAKBERETZERNEEMRE
ZER

ARG

BEAQRAR_ZZTHNFENA+
HROZBREAFASLEBEBY
FRIRAZR AARBEARE
—AN—FREEFI6KEZRE
% EL AR 19 )4 18 Bl 7 £9286,300,000
B UEZEBERERRRZ
BABRBREN-RA - ARQBRE
A B #4 BR R B S 49236,906,000/%5
TCAK S RETES1E - AR Z T
#4577 549,394,000/ T °
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35. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 35. E—FAEERELQT (&)

(Continued)

35.1 Group (Continued) 35.1 R&EE (&)
Statutory reserve ZEEME
The Group’s statutory reserves represent appropriations REBZEEREEBRIARFE
of profits retained by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. B/ A BIER R 2 s F o B o ARIEAS
In accordance with the respective articles of association ARAIFREMB AR S BHEBER
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, they are required A ZE AR ESEBERAE
to appropriate amount not less than 10% of their profits RERFNTLR10% D BB 2 AT HE
after income tax to statutory reserves each year, until the H EERHEHREEIMEERZ
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. 50% #% 1L © & & 7] A VEH0 R (o 5
Such a reserve may be used to reduce any losses BRERNE B RRA -

incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.
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35. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 35. E—AEBRALQT (&)
(Continued)
35.2 Company 35.2 XA H]
Retained
Proposed profits/
Share Capital Contributed final (accumulated
premium reserve surplus dividends losses) Total
BE  REEAN/
R 143 E BXfGE BABH AERE (RHEFR) &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
(Note (i)
(BEG)
At 1 April 2007 R-ZEELEMA—-H 111,190 24 100,680 2,081 11,197 225,172
Profit for the year RER & H - - - - 1,110 1,110
Issue of shares upon SRATRRE R
conversion of convertible B0
notes 5,505 (24) - - - 5,481
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1715 B IRFER 217 (7
share options 702 - - - - 702
Placing of shares B &R 75,800 - - - - 75,800
Issue of shares upon acquisition Yt B 2 7B
of subsidiaries BTk 22,766 - - - - 22,766
Share issue expenses EIROEZ (2,333) = = = = (2,333)
Final dividends paid for the year HZE-ZE+F
ended 31 March 2007 SAZT-ALEE
ERRERE = = - (2,081) - (2,081)
Interim dividends paid for the ~ HZ-ZZLF
period ended 30 September LA =1 B ILEiF
2007 B iR RS - - - . (2,169) (2,169)
At 31 March 2008 and RZBENE
1 April 2008 =A=t+-HR
—EE)\fMA-A 213,630 - 100,680 - 10,138 324,448
Loss for the year rEERR - - - - (198,608) (198,603)
Issue of shares upon acquisition FUYt B 2 7K
of subsidiaries ki 219,200 - - - - 219,200
Equity component in convertible R B 2 AlE %17
notes issued upon acquisiton 2 ATHRKEE 2
of subsidiaries BEHH = 149,579 = = = 149,579
Issue of shares upon RATRRERE
conversion of convertible B
notes 96,936 (37,395) - - - 59,541
Interim dividends paid for BE_ZTT)\F
the period ended NA=1BIEHH
30 September 2008 ERFRERS - - - - (17,862) (17,862)
At 31 March 2009 RZBELE

E =g =0 529,766 112,184 100,680 - (206,327) 536,303
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35. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

Note:
(i) The contributed surplus of the Company consists of:

- HK$51,286,000 being the difference between the
underlying consolidated net assets of Global Food Culture
Group Limited and its subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares which were issued under a group
reorganisation in 1997; and

= pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 10 August 2004,
the Company reduced its share premium by an amount
of approximately HK$286,300,000 in accordance with
the provisions of section 46 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and transferred the same amount to the
contributed surplus account of the Company. On the same
date, the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus account
against the accumulated losses. The remaining balance of
the contributed surplus amounted to HK$49,394,000.

36. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

- GROUP

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. The Scheme will expire on 6 October 2012.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible employees,
including executive directors, suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants and joint venture partners or business alliances of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

35. M —ANEERART (4

TR}

GEE
() ARAZBARBBIE:

- BREFAXEERARARLE
MEBARZARGRA EEFESR
RRABR—NNEFETEEE
HRMETRMZEEMRE 2%
#H /351,286,000 7T+ &

- BREBEAQAFAR-_ZZWENA
+EETZREBFAS LA
BZRERRER  AQARE
BRE-NN—FRAEFL
EZREBERDEEL RO
286,300,000/ 7t ' I # % & %8
BREEADNAZHBABBRIEA -
BRSNS S N 7Yk
H 49236,906,0007 7T A 1K 4 &
BB -BARBZABEREA
49,394,000/ TT ©

36. MR AER2TRRS

—XKH
SABR A 3% > 8 IR AT 8

ARmz BRER S ([ZT8]) TR
BARRAR-_ZEZTE_F+ALHRETZ
BREFRHAE @B ERRERK
W ETEENRLTEERAERE
ERE - ZABBR _E——FT AR
BHEIm - RIBEZAE AR EFEA
RIEHEREETAERER BN
AR ETAMERARZHTES #
EE BF BERAFERNAREEBH
HEBE R URBAQFRN
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At 31 March 2008, the Company had no outstanding share
options. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme was not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year was
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholder or independent non-executive directors in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the
share option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price was determined by the directors of the
Company and will be less than the highest of the closing price
of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options or the nominal value of the shares.

All share options will be settled in equity. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
option.

RZBEENF=ZA=+—H ' ARa
ERITE2ERE - EREARFRKRE
ELRERT  AIARIRAZ AT I L B IR
Bl 2 BRI BB TS 2 R AR RIRME
AIREEBEITROEE 210% - FERF
ANAE AR B HEERT - AER —F R
AT T EMEA < BB IR BEFT S I 2 IR {0
HE TEBBEARQ AR EAEEE
TROEBEBE21% B TFEERRNBEL
FMITEF 2 BREMBAARQFRAK
20.1%35% A {5 {8 8 15,000,000/ JT, *
WBELRESARRABRR 2 -

Rz BB ARR G B HE210
PO AR - X 7 15 4 B o 4 £ B AR S A
1B7T - BRI N R R H A HERE
RERBTEFERILHETE 176
BRARAERTEE ETNFEREN
REHABMEBRZAZRTHE RHOR
ERBRERL S AERS AT
Rz FHRmEXROEE (L&D
ERE) -

FfT 7 B8 A 1S DA RS 32 R o AN 62 [ 3F 4%
AREEERTEBA R ERE-
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36. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. UBRHOBBER TR S
- GROUP (continued) —AEH#)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) DUBRARW ZBRESE (&)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TREBXARFIES ASEEERE
share options held by the Company’s directors, the Group’s MELRFEAMTE AR R BARES
employees and other registered holders and movements in BRZEEREAMEFTE 2SS
such holdings during both years. I
Number of share options
BREHE
At Exercised Lapsed At Exercised Lapsed At
Exercise 1 April during during 31 March during during 31 March
Optiontype  Date of grant Exercisable period price 2007 the year the year 2008 the year the year 2009
R R #
It 2 2K “BENE
BREER RERS il ] il ] BmA-A ERfTfE FR&¥ =A=t-A FhTE Eq%% =A=t-8
HKS
b
Directors 2004 2.4.2004 22.4.2004 to 21.4.2007 0.363 8,000 - (8,000) - - - -
£ —E2EME -ZEMEMA-A -—EEMEMB-t+=BZ
ZZTLEMA=+-R
2005 6.1.2005 21.1.2005 to 20.1.2008 0370 3,104,000 (1,904,000) (1,200,000) - - - -
“$TRfF  -PFEE-ARA “TRRE-ACt-EE
“ZEN\F-A=TH
3,112,000  (1,904,000) (1,208,000) = = = -
Employees 2004 2.4.2004 22.4.2004 to 21.4.2007 0.363 4,000 - (4,000) - - - -
2 —ZTME -—ZTMEMA-A —TEMEMA-+=AZ
“ZRLEMAZT-H
4,000 - (4,000 = - . _
3,116,000 (1,904,000 (1,212,000 - - - -

The Group had not applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted
on or after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1 April 2005
in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions. All the
share options granted under the Scheme were vested on the
date of grant. Because all the share options outstanding as at
1 April 2005 had vested before 1 April 2005, the application of
HKFRS 2 had no impact on the Group’s result for the current
or prior accounting periods.

AEBEYERBEREVH RS ERF2
BB MR T _F+—
AtBRz@BRERNR _—_ZTHFMA
—AMFBZERERBEEMHERE
RERISE25 - RIBZTERH 2 I A B
BERBEELANEBE -BRMAR-F
ZhFENA-BRATEZEBRECR
“EERFNUA-HAMBE EREE
MBERELEERHEARERANER
HESeE et Rz XEL BT E -
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I

Accordingly, the financial impact of share options granted
was not recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance
sheet until such time as the options were exercised, and no
charge was recognised in the consolidated income statement
in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the exercise of
the share options, the resulting shares issued were recorded by
the Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares was recorded by the Company
in the share premium account. Options which were lapsed or
cancelled prior to their exercise date were deleted from the
register of outstanding options.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended
31 March 2008, the weighted average share price at the dates
of exercise was HK$0.63.

On 22 February 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, Sparkle Roll Motors Limited (Formerly
known as JD Motor Cars Limited) (“SRM”), entered
into an agreement (the “Car S&P”) with an independent
third party to acquire the BL Dealership, LB Dealership
and RR Dealership and the exclusive rights to control,
manage and operate Mei He and De Te (“Acquisition of
car business”). The principal activities of Mei He and De
Te are described in note 19 above. The acquisition was
completed on 26 June 2008.

Rt ARG 2 BREETER B
MBRTETEEARARAEEAZEE
BERPLE MARRTERSRE
BhREZEBEESRSRARKPHER
H-EBREETRR ARASIER
mEETT 2 R P EEARSEIN
o FetEsRTEERLROEEZ
BARRBRMEER -ETE BB
RIS R RITER
Pe & i i rp S B -

RERBE_ZENF=A=+—H1
FEATEZBREMNS NTEBH
Z NHE 5 A% (B /20.638 7T ©

RZEBEZENF-_AZ+ZH 'K
RNRlZ 2 &M B A FSparkle Roll
Motors Limited (A ##JD Motor
Cars Limited) ([SRM ) £ 55 37
F=ZFFMBE([AEE R
=) AWEE R A ERIERE
BISEE RE N IEE &S T T
ABERIERE UREAREFZE
HliE EEEREEE 2 BRER
([ EEB]) - EERER
2 EBEBEH N EXPIFE19 o Uz
EEERZZTEZENFAAZT+TA
H5EAR
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I

Mei He and De Te contributed aggregate of revenue of
approximately HK$459,203,000 and aggregate of net
profit of approximately HK$55,381,000 to the Group for
the period from 26 June 2008 to 31 March 2009.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2008, the
Group’s revenue would have been approximately
HK$686,176,000 and loss for the year ended 31 March
2009 would have been approximately HK$74,342,000.
These pro forma information are for illustrative purpose
only and are not necessarily indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2008 nor are they intended to be projection of
future results.

Details of this transaction were set out in circular to the
shareholders of the Company dated 30 March 2008.
Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill of the

EAREENR_ZZENEANA
ZHARBEZZEENF=A=F—
BEHEMAAEBERA RED
459,203,000/ Tt & & & 45 & 49
55,381,000/ T °

W BEER_ZSZTNFMDE
A—B XEBZREHADHA
686,176,000 L MEZE T T
NEFE=ZA=+—HLEFEZEIE
1540 574,342,000/ T ° s Z %
BERMEHRHAAR - BTAR A K
WER=_ZZENFHNA—HER
Rz AREBERIEDR 2 ZEEBIK
mREEER N TEBRIERAEZ
¥ETEA -

WS 2 HEEHIIRA AR
R=ZENF=A=+AFET
BRZBEA - EHALEFER

acquisition are as follows: W2 mEZFBENT
HK$’000
FHET
Net cash paid (Note (i)) BAFERE (MG ) 34,227
Fair value of 400,000,000 ordinary £ #1778 2 8,2 400,000,0000%

shares of the Company issued TBAR 2 AT EE (K EE))

(Note (ii)) 220,000
Fair value of Type Il Notes issued BERTE_HREBRIATFEER 385,071
Total purchase consideration BERERRE 639,298
Direct cost relating to the acquisition — EZIEUEMRR ~ HE KA 2,453
Fair value of aggregate net BRAEBALEEFBEATEE

assets acquired (61,072)
Goodwill (Note 20) & (fi5E20) 580,679
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RZZBZNFRAZTRA (Y
BE) 2R BBl EERBBEZAYF
EBEIEZZBWE TR Z Y

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
as at 26 June 2008, the acquisition date, and the
corresponding carrying amounts immediately before

completion of the acquisition are as follows: FEEREEL T
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
HWEAZ
AFEE FREE
HK$’'000 HK$’000
F& T F& T
Mei He E3ey
Property, plant and equipment I RS RS 718 718
Inventories FE 14,339 14,339
Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 /I8 I H th fE W IE 74,825 74,825
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEBEEE 9,596 9,596
Trade and other payables FEHE 5 5K I8 J B b FE < /I8 (70,809) (70,809)
28,669
Net assets acquired BEEAEEFE 28,669
De Te =i
Property, plant and equipment LER Y 3,499 3,499
Inventories A 1,348 1,348
Trade and other receivables FE W 5 5k I8 J E b fE W FRIE 27,379 27,379
Cash and cash equivalents RekFESFEIEAER 1,956 1,956
Trade and other payables JERT B 5 5 I8 K H < R I8 (1,779) (1,779)
32,403
Net assets acquired EEAEEFE 32,403
Aggregate net assets acquired EEABGEEFE 61,072
Total cash consideration BeRERRE (34,227)
Direct cost relating to HIWIE B 2 B KA
the acquisition (2,453)
Cash and cash equivalents in EEAKBRARZES R
subsidiaries acquired ReEHEEER 11,552
Net outflow of cash and RekReFEBEEHZ
cash equivalents HFE (25,128)
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - GROUP
(Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of car business (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii

(if)

(iv)

The Group has paid HK$50,000,000 by cash as
consideration of acquisition. According to the Car
S&P, before the official approval of the transfer of the
BL Dealership, LB Dealership and RR Dealership, all
profits generated from 1 January 2008 onwards from
such businesses are entitled to the Group. Before
the completion of the Acquisition of car business,
approximately HK$15,772,000, in aggregate, was
generated from the car trading business and was offset
with the consideration. Details of the terms of the Car
S&P are included in the circular of the Company dated 20
March 2008.

The fair value of the new ordinary shares of the Company
issued was based on the published closing share price at
the acquisition date.

The fair values of Type Il Notes were determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to a valuation
performed by Norton.

The BL Dealership, LB Dealership and RR Dealership are
intangible assets acquired which have not been recognised
separately from goodwill. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the fair value of these intangible
assets should be linked with the key management running
the car business and thus, for the intangible assets alone,
it could not be measured reliably. The goodwill arising
from the acquisition is also attributable to the prospect
from these dealerships by reference to the anticipated
profitability of the business in the PRC and the expected
continuing growth of the industry in the PRC.
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On 8 August 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, SRW&J, entered into certain agreements
with an independent third party to acquire 100% equity
interest in RM SH and an exclusive and non-transferable
licence to use the trademark in the PRC for 5 years. The
principal activity of RM SH is described in note 19 above.
The acquisition was completed in 8 August 2008.

RM SH contributed aggregate of revenue of
approximately HK$383,000 and aggregate of net profit
of approximately HK$34,000 to the Group for the period
from 8 August 2008 to 31 March 2009.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2008, the
Group’s revenue would have been approximately
HK$612,495,000 and loss for the year ended 31 March
2009 would have been approximately HK$80,678,000.
These pro forma information are for illustrative purpose
only and are not necessarily indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2008 nor are they intended to be projection of
future results.
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - GROUP

(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of watch business (Continued)

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill of the

37. EBEH - &KE (&)

(b) WHBEHREH (&)

EBABEFERKRBRE

acquisition are as follows: BT
Acquiree’s
Fair value carrying amount
HUBEA 2
AFEE BREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
Property, plant and equipment LER T Y 32 32
Intangible assets mVEE 5,801 -
Inventories FE 4,297 4,297
Other receivables H b jE W FRIE 308 308
Cash and cash equivalents e kReFEEER 877 877
Other payables H b B 38 (315) (315)
5,199
Net assets acquired BEBAEESE 11,000
Total cash consideration ReRELR (11,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in EBANBRARIZES K
a subsidiary acquired HeEHEIEAHR 877
Net outflow of cash and RekREFMEEB Z
cash equivalents L B (10,129)
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On 20 August 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Jade Dynasty Multi-Media Limited (“JDMML”),
entered into an agreement with an independent third
party for the acquisition of 51% of the equity interests of
Suzhou Hongyang through the acquisition of 51% paid
up share capital of Super Win Limited (“Super Win”), the
immediate holding company of Suzhou Hongyang, the
exclusive entitlement to all of the economic benefits and
rights to control, management and operate Shanghai
Sanding and Nanjing Hongying, for a consideration of
HK$31,008,000, including issue of 40,800,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company at the closing price at
date of issue and cash of HK$8,160,000 (“Acquisition
of Hongying Group”). The principal activities of Suzhou
Hongyang, Shanghai Sanding and Nanjing Hongying
are described in note 19 above. The acquisition was
completed on 1 November 2007.

On 20 August 2007, JDMML entered into an option
deed pursuant to which JDMML is granted a call option
to acquire and granted a put option for the minority
shareholder of Super Win to sell the remaining 49% of
equity interests of Super Win within a specified period
according to the relevant terms of the agreement.

Suzhou Hongyang, Shanghai Sanding and Nanjing
Hongying contributed aggregate of revenue of
approximately HK$42,238,000 and aggregate of net profit
of approximately HK$12,348,000 to the Group for the
period from 1 November 2007 to 31 March 2008.
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If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2007, the
Group’s revenue would have been approximately
HK$202,958,000 and profit for the year ended 31 March
2008 would have been approximately HK$10,021,000.
These pro forma information are for illustrative purpose
only and are not necessarily indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2007 nor are they intended to be projection of
future results.

Details of this transaction were set out in circular to the
shareholders of the Company dated 31 August 2007.
Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill of the
acquisition are as follows:

WHEBEER _ZTLFM
A—B XEBZREHHA
202,958,000 L  MEZE T T
NEZA=Z+—BILEEZHEH
1547 410,021,000/8 7T ° i Z %
BRHEMF ARG BTARAM
WER—_ZEELFMA—HER
Rz AREEBERIED 2 ZHEBIK
mREEEE T BERRR L
XEEA -

BERXZ2HFBEEE#HINARA
R_ZEZLFN\A=1T—HF%
FTRREZEBHA - EBABEFE
REEzZEBEBZFBOT:

HK$'000
TAET

Cash consideration
Fair value of new ordinary shares of
the Company issued

Total purchase consideration
Direct cost relating to the acquisition
Net fair values of Call Option and
Put Option
Fair value of aggregate net
assets acquired

Goodwill (Note 20)

ReRE
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HZIRW B R 2 BEERAA
REHRRLAABR I AFEERE

RATBABEREZATFEE

a2 (F97E20)

8,160

22,848

31,008
1,445

(430)

(15,368)

16,655
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The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

as at 1 November 2007, the date of completion of the

acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts

R-FZLF+—HA—B (BIEX
WEAH) ZABMNEERABRELZ
RN BEREEZAKBETKA

immediately before completion of the acquisition are as ZEEEREAEMT
follows:
Acquiree’s
Fair value carrying amount
WA 2
AFEE BREE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
F& T FAT
Suzhou Hongyang BN 8 15
Property, plant and equipment R RIS 3,624 3,624
Intangible assets EmEE 1,160 1,160
Inventories BE 10,520 10,520
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 5k K E b & I Fk I8 15,308 15,308
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEIER 1,834 1,834
Trade and other payables BT E 5 3RI8 K H M A< 5RIE (21,537) (21,537)
10,909
Net assets BEFEE 10,909
Minority interests (49%) D IR R 75 (49%) (5,345)
Net assets acquired EEAEEFE 5,564
Shanghai Sanding EB=8
Property, plant and equipment e YR 1,106 1,106
Inventories rE 1,932 1,932
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 3k I8 K H e UK 518 6,231 6,231
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEBEEE 303 303
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 708 K& H e 5 3RIB (17,511) (17,511)
(7,939)

Net liabilities acquired

PriB ABEFE

(7,939)
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Acquiree’s
Fair value carrying amount
WUWEBA 2
AFEE REE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TAT TAT
Nanjing Hongying R E R
Property, plant and equipment I eSS 1,638 1,638
Inventories BE 24,512 24,512
Trade and other receivables FE U E 5 5k IE I B Ath ' W 508 8,951 8,951
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeFEEAR 5,031 5,031
Trade and other payables FEA B 5 3k T8 I E b B 5 3E (22,389) (22,389)
17,743
Net assets acquired EEAEEFE 17,743
Aggregate net assets acquired RAEBAEESTE 15,368
Total cash consideration ReREER (8,160)
Direct cost relating to BZ BB AR 2 B
the acquisition (1,445)
Cash and cash equivalents in FIBAMBARIZEE R
subsidiaries acquired ReEHEEE 7,168
Net outflow of cash and RekREFMBEEEB 2
cash equivalents L FE (2,437)
Notes: B -

(i) The fair value of the new ordinary shares of the Company
issued was based on the published closing share price at

the date of issue.

(i) The fair values of the Call Option and Put Option were
determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to a valuation performed by a firm of independent
professional valuers in Hong Kong.

(i)~ The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to
the anticipated profitability of the market in the PRC and
the expected continuing growth of the economy of the

PRC.
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At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments

WEHE AEBREENEZ FAH
2

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable SHICEHE T 2 R R EE & B A
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as AT 51 HA RS B R
follows:
2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F& T
Within one year —F R 23,137 2,637
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFERF
(BREREMSF) 46,219 2,159
Over five years AFUNE 11,846 =
81,202 4,796

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its staff quarters and office premises in the PRC and
Taiwan. Leases are mainly negotiated for an average term of
one to five years.

Other commitments of the Group in relation of investment in
production of animations are as follows:

REMEFREAKERRERNTBER
BZEIBEEMRREREXNZHE

o

AN
T BRTMHEZFHFHETER—EH
F

AEEBRPERFERE 2 HbAED

T

2009 2008

—EENF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Contracted but not provided for EHEKER 2L 1,226 =
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I

During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in these F R BRI ZN B 75 3 3% E B0 10 P4 B8
financial statements, the Group had the following significant BN AEEBEBERTET FAIERXR
transactions with related parties: R :
2009 2008
—EZhEF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FTHET FAHET
Payment of comic script fee SHFRBREES
and bonus to a shareholder BIARE M AEAL (i) 4,668 4,668
Payment of salary and SR THEET 2 EFSR
administrative fees to TERAX
related parties (if) 1,375 1,173
Payment of consultancy fee to X FREH 2 HRHE A
related parties (iii) 313 545
Sales of watches to directors ) E F i & E ik (iv) 479 =
Sales of automobiles and M — RS E T E kB
watches to a shareholder (v) 6,464 -
Payment of management fee YR TFEEARZERER
and office expenses to NN Y
a related company (Vi) 1,217 -
Payment of agency fee to T FREBARZREER
related companies (Vi) 289 -
Purchase of inventories from MEEARRBEFE
a related company (vii) 868 -
Receipt from a related company YBR[ i& A &) 5018 (viii) 24,904 =
Impairment of receivables JE WS FIE R (B (ix) 82 =
Notes: B 5
(i) During the year, the Group paid comic script fee and bonus to () FR - BEIRELENRBIIEBRZ 55
Mr. Wong Chun Loong, in the capacity as chief creative officer BATHARNERER 2 BRI W
pursuant to the relevant service agreement signed with the REEBREZNEEBIARE RIEL -
Group.
iy REBEE-ZEZAF=A=+—-—HEZ=
(i)  During the years ended 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008, the T N\F=ZA=+—HLEFE K&H
Group paid salary and administrative expenses to close family MR AW & E B E R E R ER
members of two directors of the Company, Mr. Tong Kai Lap BAEZHEFRINFERITHAES -
and Mr. Wong Chun Keung. The amounts paid to these related XN TFZEBER2EBNIERTEE
parties are for the purpose of normal course of business. No BB RS o B ERIA 5% F IER
individual persons received over HK$1,000,000 in each of the B 3@1,000,00078 JT °

year.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -
GROUP (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The entire consultancy fee was paid to two companies, one of
which is controlled by Mr. Tong Kai Lap and his family members
and the other is controlled by Mr. Ko Chi Keung and his family
members.

During the year, sales of watches were made to two directors of
the Company, Mr. Tong Kai Lap and Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong.

During the year, the Group sold watches and an automobile to a
shareholder, Mr. Qi.

During the year, the Group paid rents, management fee and
office expenses and agency fee to related companies which are
owned and controlled by Mr. Qi.

During the year, the Group purchased certain inventories from a
company of which the beneficial owner is Mr. Qi.

During the year, the Group received the income from car
dealership generated from a company of which the beneficial
owner is Mr. Qi.

During the year, Sparkle Roll Enterprises Limited was
incorporated in the British Virgin Island. Sparkle Roll Enterprises
Limited is owned as to 10% by the Group and 90% by a
company which is owned by Mr. Qi. Upon the incorporation,
the Group injected HK$78 for the shareholding. During the year,
allowance of impairment of other receivable of HK$82,000 was
made.

The directors of the Company considered they are the key
management of the Group. Details of their remuneration are set
out in note 11.

F 3R 2009
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(ix)
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I

As at 31 March 2009, the Company has executed corporate
guarantees to certain banks with respect to general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of
approximately HK$7,000,000 (2008: HK$10,850,000). At the
balance sheet date, no provision for the Company’s obligation
under the guarantee contracts has been made as the directors
considered that it was not probable that the repayments of the
bank borrowings would be in default.

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks include market risk (including currency risk and
interest risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Company’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

RZZEEAF=ZA=+—HB &A
RAERTRFARAE THE QA
497,000,000 T (ZZE T )\ & -
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B
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TREREERAASEANRE WM
ExeREcF-EECRRARZER
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The carrying amounts presented in the balance sheets

related to the following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities.

REEREBEREIZEEELR
UTEemEERSREEEN-

Financial assets THEE
Group Company
~E b N/N|
2009 2008 2009 2008
“ETAE ZET)\HE ZEBEAFE ZZTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET TET FHET
Derivative financial fTHESRMIA
instruments 698 2,428 - -
Loans and receivables ER R IE
— Trade receivables —EUE 5508 22,161 19,729 - =
— Amounts due from — FE W B E 5 3R &
a related party and H 4 e M5k IE
other receivables 4,711 9,833 - -
— Amounts due from — M E RN RFIE
related companies 13,813 - - -
~ Amounts due from — WK B A R RUR
subsidiaries - - 711,821 121,809
Pledged bank deposits BEMETHER 5,337 4,406 3,327 3,294
Cash and bank balances Be MBITEAS 71,564 27,172 39 44
118,284 63,568 715,187 125,147
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42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2009

42.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

42. T RIERERE &)

21 sRMEERAEERR (&)

(Continued)
Financial liabilities THERE
Group Company
& b N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETNFE ZTT)N\F ZEBRF ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET FHT FBT
Derivative financial MESBMITE
instruments 697 2,317 - -
Financial liabilities measured ~ LABE S5k AN 5t & 2
at amortised cost TRAR
— Trade payables —ENE S HIE 12,943 9,943 - =
- Accrued charges, —JESHER BN
amount due to — MK E A A
a minority shareholder DERRE 2 K
of a subsidiary and T8 % H e
other payables FRIE 23,201 21,805 3,996 498
- Amounts due to related — FET A& 5 FIE
parties 10,601 - - -
~ Amounts due to — BB AR
subsidiaries EQE] - = 21,148 =
Borrowings BE 33,424 930 7,500 80
Convertible notes Al A % % 183,668 - 183,668 -
264,534 34,995 216,312 578
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Transactions in foreign currencies and the

Company’s risk management policies

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future

cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because

of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s

exposures to currency risk arise from its overseas sales,

which are primarily denominated in US$, Singapore
Dollar (“SGD”) and Taiwan Dollar (“NT$”). This is not the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries to

which these transactions relate. The Group currently does

not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,

the management monitors foreign exchange exposure

NEXERERA 2R EE

BE

E¥EREERTIAEZ AFEER
ARRERERINEERZEE M
ME) 2 B - REE 2 B R RIR
BEBINEE  TEUXRT FMN
Rt ([FmsTT]) ket (15
AR 1) FHE MET  FIRT K
BEAARARZEXSHA
ZHBARZINEEE R - AR ER
Ry I SN SRR o AT IR
[EgEmiMERR  WNEFEE

ZEUMERIIE R -

and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and PONBETTEveREERBESR

liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, are as BEEREXRTRAHEIT  HET

follows: R
2009 2008
ZEENE “ZTN\E

Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net

assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure

eREE eRaE BREE SHEE eRAME Rl R

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TER TER TET TET TET

NT$ maE 715 - 715 3,081 = 3,081

SGD AT 2,485 - 2,485 - - -

Us$

XN 2,097

(3,785)

(1,668)

605

605
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Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 March 2009 and equity in
regards to a 5% (2008: 5%) appreciation in HK$ against
US$, SGD and NT$ respectively. The 5% is the rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
best assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk at the balance sheet dates has
been determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial years and held constant
throughout the years.

BB E DT

TRELAAEERBE=-FZTAN
FZA=Z1+—HLEFEZEBER
e 2 978 TT 53R T~ #T AN T R
BHESRIFESY (ZFF )\ F:
5% ) 2 BEEE - 5% T A AR EE
BB ABEINE R R A B S B
%thm'iﬁfﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁl\ﬁ%ﬁ%
BE) 2 &AEMAE e

AEENEE RS2SR
BRI BT WA B B4 4 2 41
R 5 BB RS 1B
BEMEBRE FRETE -

Results for the year
and retained profits

REEEBERRBEF
2009 2008
—BBhE —BETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAETT
NT$ ek 30 30
SGD AN T 93 =
us$ ETT (63) 154

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against US$, SGD and NT$
would have the same magnitude on the Group’s loss for
the year and equity but of opposite effect.

These are the same method and assumption used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the period ended 31 March 2008.

T3 ST - H AT AT A M
E5% - 5 ¥ A 2 B RO AR 2 2 s
BRESAARSARR  FE-

HEIMERHRBE_TT/\F=
A=+—B - R % R 2 8=
B DR Z 55 RBRRER -
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Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
years depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

As the Company does not have significant exposure
to foreign currency risk, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in foreign currency rates.

Exposures to interest rate risk and the Group’s risk
management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
interest rate risk arises primarily from bank deposits (Note
28) and borrowings (Note 32). The Group has not used
any derivative contracts in order to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated a policy
to manage the interest rate risk.
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Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2009 to a
possible change in interest rates of +/- 0.5% (2008:
+/- 0.5%), with effect from the beginning of the years.
The calculations are based on the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities held at the balance sheet dates. All
other variables are held constant. The assumed changes
have no significant impact on the Company’s other
components of equity.

BB E DT

TRELATNSEEE_STNF =
A=+—BLEFEZEBERYA
FNEB 2 EENEEB+/- 0.5%
ZEENF: 4/- 0.5%) 2 BEX
B stEREUAEBNEE AR
EreRmEERABREE -FTH
Hth B EFIE - BREHE K
NAEzm 2 o W ME KN
&£,

Results for the year and
retained profits

TEEEBERFREER
HK$’ 000
FHET
+0.5% -0.5%
2009 —EEhEF 241 (241)
2008 —EENF 177 (77)

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to
be reasonably possible based on observation of current
market conditions and represents the management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rate over the period until the next annual balance sheet
date.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31 March 2008 has been
prepared on the same basis.

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.
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Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. Generally, the maximum credit
risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of
the financial assets as shown on the face of the balance
sheets which are summarised in note 42.1 above. None
of the financial assets of the Group are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

All the Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group trades mainly with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables included
in the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables from this customer represented about
46% of the Group’s total trade receivables as at 31
March 2009 (2008: 51%). The Group’s concentration of
credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in Hong
Kong.

The Company is not exposed to significant concentration
of risk.
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Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated
basis by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long term financial liabilities as well as
forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31
March 2009. When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis of
the earliest date on when the Group can be required to
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group is committed to pay.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 42. cRiERERE (&)

42.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 42,5 REMER (£Z)
The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of SMAEBBEZRUBEESR
the financial liabilities. ERKE-
Group rEE

On Less than One year

demand one year or above Total
BRER PR-F —FFUL G

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 31 March 2009 R-ZZBEAF
=B=+-—H
Non-derivative financial FTAESRTA
instruments
Trade payables FERE 5 58 - 12,943 - 12,943

Accrued charges, amount due  fEZF B A« B — R
to a minority shareholder of ~ BRAA D HRE 2K

subsidiary and I8 N H At FE S 5018

other payables 20,706 - 2,495 23,201
Amounts due to related e BEE 7 RIB

parties 10,601 - - 10,601
Borrowings BE - 33,424 - 33,424
Convertible notes ABRKRER - - 183,668 183,668

31,307 46,367 186,163 263,837
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

“EEANF=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2009

42,

EREKRERE &)

42.5 FEh R kR (

?H‘Jﬁr

Group (Continued) rEE (&)
On Less than One year
demand one year or above Total
RER PR—F —FZUL &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2008 ﬁé:zgl\i
ZA=+—
Non-derivative financial FUTESRIA
instruments
Trade payables R E 53R - 9,943 = 9,943
Accrued charges, amount due JEEFE A« B —
to a minority shareholder MEBARDHBREZ
of subsidiary and other PR K H e 5R0A
payables 21,163 - 642 21,805
Borrowings EE 80 850 = 930
21,243 10,793 642 32,678
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Company ¥
On Less than One year
demand one year or above Total
BREXR PR-F —FZULE =
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 31 March 2009 R=ZBEAEF
=B=t+—H
Accrued charges and et & A K H A
other payables JE 1 5/ I8 3,996 - - 3,996
Amount due to subsidiaries FEASH B B A R R IA 21,148 - - 21,148
Borrowings EE = 7,500 = 7,500
Convertible notes AR 2R - - 183,668 183,668
25,144 7,500 183,668 216,312
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZENF
=A=+—8
Accrued charges and et & A K H A
other payables P& ROR 498 — = 498
Borrowings B 80 = = 80
578 - - 578

The fair values of the Group’s and Company’s financial

assets and liabilities are not materially different from their

carrying amounts because of their immediate or short

term maturity.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded

in an active market is determined by using valuation

techniques. The Group takes reference to professional

valuations where necessary and uses a variety of method

and makes assumptions that are based on market

conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
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The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as borrowings and convertible notes, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet. Total capital is calculated as equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group aims to maintain the
gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

AEEEAEEZIZEAREREELHE
FrafE 2 ERATRRERZEARL X
IAXFEEBRERREERAL-

AEBRBEEERRBLEREEN
REYHEFELFAR - BEFAARE
AER AEEHARFRBRAKRRINNZ
BB RBRREFEEEANLBEITHR
RICHFEE AEBZBR BRRAE

AEERAEAAGL R (AEKRE
BRABAER) BERER - BHARETIR
EEMABRRREAE YHENGEEE
ERBERA -BRNERDBRARBBRA
REARGRDSGE THENEEEE
BERAN-AKEZBEEEEREANER
R ERAE—EAEAKF L

2009 2008
—2ENE —2ENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Total debt BERERE
Borrowings BE 33,424 930
Convertible notes Al % 25 183,668 =
217,092 930
Total capital NG 575,494 351,450
Total debt to capital ratio MENREFELL K 37.7% 0.3%
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With reference to the sale and purchase agreement
(“S&P”) dated 20 August 2007, the Group granted a
Put Option to and purchased a Call Option for further
acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in the issued
share capital of Super Win. Stated in the S&P, the
vendors have jointly and severally guaranteed that the
aggregate audited profit after tax of Nanjing Hongying,
Shanghai Sanding and net of 49% of shareholding in
Suzhou Hongyang for each of year ended 31 December
2007 and 2008 was not less than HK$8.5 million (the
“Profit Guarantee”). On 27 April 2009, the Group has
decided not to exercise the Call Option and not to acquire
the remaining 49% interest in Super Win and therefore
the Call Option was lapsed on 30 April 2009. As the
aggregated profit was unable to meet the Guaranteed
Profit during the year ended 31 December 2008, the
vender is not entitled to exercise the Put Option and it
was therefore automatically lapsed.

On 24 April 2009, the Group entered into a distribution
agreement with an independent third party to obtain
dealership of a branded watch in the PRC. This
dealership contract contained no consideration was
completed upon signing of the contract.

EHRABHAE-_ZTZTLFN
AZ+RZEERA([EEWR
&) AEEAE—FUFESuper
WInBE B 1T IRZR 2 8 TN 49% 7 2= 1M
RERE AR B ARESRE-
BEEMZIH BFEERES
AREFERBER LE=R8Z
—TEELFER_ZEENE+_A
S+—BLEFESFzZRBIER
BR85S 2 49% It 14 v 85
%o M #8581 2 5188,500,000/% 7T
(CEFMRE]) RZZEThLEFNW
AZ++tR AEERETETE
RS HARE - = Y B Super Win
BT 49% M R REAEER
—TTEAFMA=+THEK -BHR
BE-_ZTZN\F+=ZH=1T—H
IEFEZ &M BEREEDRE
st - R T R LT AR B R
ROLHARETNEm B8R -

RZZETHAFWA=—+MH A&
B —BIE=FF DD
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ZRERE LEEREESGOER
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Financial Summary

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=t-HLEE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
ZZTRF ZTTREFE  ZTTtF  ZZTNFE  ZEBEEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT AT THT THT TER
Revenue e 107,307 102,214 102,094 156,726 611,530
Profit/(loss) for the year KARREFEE A
attributable to the equity FEIERERER
holders of the Company (B#8) 11,043 13,538 11,370 6,585 (189,969)
At 31 March
R=B=t-H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“TERF TR ZETtF —TTN\F CZBEhE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT THET AT THT TER
Total assets BEE 210,709 235,269 271,653 411,777 879,172
Total liabilities BmEfE (94,213) (47,106) (24,950) (52,891) (300,221)
116,496 188,163 246,708 358,886 578,951
Equity attributable to equity RRBIRAFFE A
holders of the Company FE(h = 116,496 188,163 244,260 351,450 575,494
Minority interests D EIR R A - - 2,443 7,436 3,457
116,496 188,163 246,703 358,886 578,951
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